
60

* *

★
Frank Edelblut Christine Brennan
Commissioner ■■ Deputy Commissioner

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

25 Hall Street

Concord, N.H. 03301

July 5, 2024

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, NH 03301

REQUESTED ACTIQiN

Authorize the Department of Education (NHED) Bureau of Vocational Rehabilitation (VR) to
retroactively amend a sole source contract with Northeast Deaf and Hard of Hearing Services,
Inc (NDHHS), Concord, New Hampshire (Vendor Code 159021) to provide outreach services by
extending the expiration date from June 30, 2024 to December 31, 2024, with no change to the
price limitation of $30,000. The original contract was approved by Governor and Council on
September 20, 2023, item #136. 100% Federal Funds.

EXPLANATION

This amendment is sole source because the original contract was sole source. This item is
retroactive due to the decision to amend the item to extend the expiration date as opposed to a
new contract being made in the beginning of June and having insufficient time to submit for the
June 2024 Governor and Council meetings. This decision was made to expend the remaining
funding still available after instructing the vendor to halt all services pending Governor and
Council approval of an extension. NDHHS has established strong relationships within the deaf
community and works with students who are deaf, providing Pre-Employment Transition Services
(Pre-ETS). Given its specialized services and established track record, NDHHS is the reasonable
choice in New Hampshire equipped to. meet this underserved population's needs, effectively.
Therefore, the sole source procurement of services from NDHHS is recommended to ensure the
continued support and empowerment of deaf, hard of hearing, and deafblind individuals in the
state. A no-cost extension is requested to expend the remaining funding for the original contract
on comprehensive outreach services to Pre-ETS students.

TDD Access: Relay .NH 711
EQUAL OPPORTUMTV EMPLOYER- EQUAL EDUCATIONAL OPPORTUNITIES



His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council
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NDHHS is a non-profit organization that has exclusive provision of a comprehensive range of
services for deaf, hard of hearing, and deafbiind individuals across multiple settings. The
organization has a dedicated outreach team that can collaborate and engage with targeted VRNH
stakeholders: school districts, educators, audiologists, nurses, related service providers,
interpreters, families, and community agencies in densely populated areas identifying traditionally
underserved populations of deaf and hard of hearing youth to ensure the resources and information
relating to pre-employment services (Pre-ETS) and raise awareness of VRNH services. Their team
is comprised of professionals who specialize in working with this population, including Teachers
of the deaf and hard of hearing. Spoken Language Specialists, Educational Audiologists, School
psychologists, Educational Interpreters, etc. This diverse team, predominantly comprised of deaf
or hard-of-hearing staff, brings a unique network of expertise to their services. They are well-
positioned to engage and raise awareness of Pre-Employment Transition Services among
potentially eligible individuals.

Respectfully submitted,

Frank Edelblut

Commissioner of Education
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AMENDMENT TO

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES CONTRACT

^ow come the New Hampshire Department of Education hereinafter "the Agency," and Northeast Deaf and
Hard of Hearing Services, Inc., Concord NH, hereinafter "the Contractor", and. pursuant to an agreement between the
parties that was approved by Governor and Council on September 20.2023. (Item #136) hereby agree to modify same
as follows:

1. Amend P-37 box 1.7 by removing June 30, 2024 and replacing it with December 31, 2024.

2. Amend Exhibit B paragraph one (I) by removing, "June 30,2024:" and replacing with, "December 31,2024."

3. All other provisions of this agreement shall remain in full force and effect as originally set forth; and

4. This amendment shall commence upon Governor and Council approval for the period of July I, 2024, and
shall terminate on December 31, 2024.

This modification of an existing agreement is hereby incorporated by reference to the existing agreement by the parties
and must be attached to the said agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties, hereto have set their hands as of the day and year first above written.

THE STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE ■

Department of Education
(Agency)

Division of Commissioner's Office

.01 7/23/2024

By: '
Frank Edelblut, Commissioner of Education Date

Northeast Dead and Hard of Hearing Services, Inc. (Contractor)

Jul8,2024
By:

Michelle McConaghy. Executive Director Date

Approved as to form, substance and execution by the Attomey General this day of , 2024.

vision of Attorney General Office

Approved by the Governor and Council this day of , 20

Bv:



CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

1. Peter Simoneau, hereby certify that:

1. 1 am a duly elected ClerWSecretary/Officer of Northeast Deaf and Hard of Hearing Services

2. The following Is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors/shareholders, duly called and
held on April 9. 2024, at which a quorum of the Directors/shareholders were present and voting.

VOTED: That Michelle McMConaghy the Executive Director Is duly authorized on behalf of Northeast Deaf and
Hard of Hearing Sen/Ices to enter into contracts or agreements with the State of New Hampshire and any of its
agencies or departments and further is authorized to execute any and all documents, agreements and other
instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, which may in his/her judgment be desirable
or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

3. 1 hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and eff^ as of the
date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is attached. This authority was valid thirty (30)
days prior to and remains valid for thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. I further certify
that it is understood that the State of New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s)
listed above currently occupy the posltion(s) indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To
the extent that there are any limits on the authority of any listed individual to bind the corporation in contracts with
the State of New Hampshire, all such limitations are expressly stated h^ein.

Dated: July 2, 2024 A//^
Signature of Elected Offic^

Rev. 03/24/20 '



State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

1, David M. Scanlan, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that NORTHEAST DEAF AND HARD

OF HEARING SERVICES, INC. is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on

April 28, 2000. 1 further certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of Slate s office have been received and is in

good standing as far as this office is concerned.

Business ID: 344894

Certificate Number: 0006725862

Ar

SA.

<6©

^:2

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 26th day of June A.D. 2024.

David M. Scanlan

Secretaiy of State



/iCORCf CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
DATE (MM/DD/YYYYJ

06/17/2024

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS

CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND. EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER{S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the pollcy(les) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed..
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder In lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER

E & S Insurance Services LLC

21 Meadowbrook Lane

P 0 Box 7425

Gilford NH 03247-7425

NAME*^^ Sidney Stevens
(603)293-2791 (603) 293-7188

A'otwesS' sidneyigesinsurance.nei
INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC •

INSURER A
AmTrust Financial Services, Inc.

INSURED

Northeast Deaf and Hard of Hearing Services. Inc.

56 Old Suncook Road. Suite 6

Concord NH 03301

INSURER B

INSURER C

INSURER 0

INSURERE

INSURERF

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 24 REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTiP/ THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD

INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS

CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS.
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

POLICY EFF
(MM/DO/YYVYI

POLICY exp
(MKUOO/YYYY)TYPE OF INSURANCE

ADDL

INSD

SUBR

WVO POLICY NUMBER LIMITS
INSR
LTR

X COMMERCIAL GENERAL UABILITY

CLAIMS-MAOE X OCCUR

EACH OCCURRENCE

DAUACe TDRemEC
PREMISES (Ea oecufrenca)

MED EXP (AftY one p«r»on)

07/01/2024 07/01/2025
PERSONAL & AOV INJURY

GENX AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER

PRO
JECTPOLICY □ ?I?F □ LOC

OTHER:

GENERAL AGGREGATE

PRODUCTS • COMP/OPAGG

1.000,000

100,000

5.000

1.000.000

3.000.000

3.000,000

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

ANY AUTO

X

COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
lEa acdoenit 1.000.000

BODILY INJURY (Per person)

OWNED
AUTOS ONLY
HIRED
AUTOS ONLY X

SCHEDULED
AUTOS
NONOWNEO
AUTOS ONLY

07/01/2024 07/01/2025 BODILY INJURY (Per acddent)

PROPERTY DAMAGE
(Per ecciaeno

X UMBRELLA LIAB

EXCESS UAB

OCCUR

CLAIMS-MAOE

EACH OCCURRENCE 1.000.000

07/01/2024 07/01/2025 AGGREGATE

DEO X RETENTION % ^O-OOO
WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS' UABIUTY

ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?
{MendMoryln NH)
ir yes. describe urKler
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below .

PER
STATUTE

OTH
ER

□ E.L. EACH ACCIDENT

E.L. DISEASE • EA EMPLOYEE

6.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS I VEHICLES (ACORO 101. AddlUonel Remerlit Schedule, may be attached If more tpece Is required)

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

NHED

25 Hail St

Concord NH 03301

1

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25 (2016/03)

e>1988-201SACORDCORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD



/\CORO'

NORTDEA-01

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

jySMEU
DATE (MMrtJD/YYYY)

6/27/2024

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS

CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND. EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S). AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the pollcy(ios) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER

Davis & Towie Morrlll & Everett, Inc.
115 Airport Road
Concord, NH 03301

CONTACT Sherrl A. Cole, ACSR

wc%.E»): (603) 715-9764 (A';c.Nott(603) 225-7935
f^o^bss- 8COle(®davistowle.com

INSURER(S) APFORDING COVERAGE NAIC#

INSURER A Travelers Insurance 19046

INSURED

Northeast Deaf and Hard of Hearing Services, Inc.
56 Old Suncook Road Suite 6

Concord, NH 03301

INSURER B BCS Insurance ComDanv

INSURER C

INSURER D

INSURER E

INSURER P

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES "DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS.
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR

LTR TYPE OP INSURANCE
ADDL
INSn

SUBR

VYYO POLICY NUMBER
POLICY EPF
IMM/DO/YYYYI

POLICY EXP
IMM/DD/YYYYI LIMITS

COMMERCIAL GENERAL UABIUTY

)E 1 1 OCCUR
EACH (XCURRENCE s

CLAIMS-MAC DAMAGE TO RENTED
s

MED EXP (Anv one oersoni s

PERSONAL S AOV INJURY $

GENl AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER; GENERAL AGGREGATE s

POLICY 1 ^ 1 ^ LOC
OTHER;

PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG s

5

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY
COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT

S

ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY (Per bersonl S

OWNED
AUTOS ONLY

aI^^ only

SCHEDULED
AUTOS BODILY INJURY (Per acdflenii s

PROPERTY DAMAGE
(Per eccidenti s

%

UMBRELLA LIAB

EXCESS LIAB

OCCUR

CLAIMS-MAOE

EACH OCCURRENCE s

AGGREGATE " s

DEO 1 RETENTIONS $

A WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY ^ ̂
ANYPROPRlETOR/PARTNER/EXECl/nvE ("771

N yes. describe ur>der
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS bekw

HI A

4/14/2024 4/14/2025

Y 1 PER OTH-
* 1 STATUTE ER

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT
J  500,000

E.L. DISEASE EA EMPLOYEE
J  500,000

F I. OlSFASE. POLICY LIMIT
^  500,000

B Cyber Liability 11/16/2023 11/16/2024 2,500 ded/retention 2,000,000

DESCRIPTION OP OPERATIONS/ LOCATIONS/ VEHICLES (ACORD 101. AddlUontI Rtmvkt Schtdult. m«y b« •tUchM) if mor« tpac* i« r*<pjlr«<f)
Workers Compensation 3A States: NH

**"Excess Cyber Liability***

Scottsdale Insurance Company • Policy # EKS3454911
Policy Period -11/16/2023 -11/16/2024
$3,000,000 Aggregate Limit of Liability - $2,500 deductible/retention

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

NH Department of Education
25 Hall Street

Concord, NH 03301

1

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE

THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF. NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25(2016/03) ® 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD



U i: NDHHS
Northeast Deaf and Hard

of Hearing Services. INC.

56 Old Suncook Road Suite 6, Concord, NH 03301

603-224-1850 Voice, 603-968-5889 VP

603-856-0242 Fax, 603-224-0691 TTY

vvvvw.ndhhs.org

Mission Statement

Northeast Deaf and Hard of Hearing Services [NDHHS] is dedicated to serving
Deaf and Hard of Hearing individuals in an environment that is
communicatively unrestricted and "natural" to them. NDHHS is committed to
hiring staff members who are fluent in sign language and capable of identifying
and meeting consumers' preferred mode of communication. NDHHS seeks to
empower, educate and advocate for equal access and opportunity for Deaf and
Hard of hearing citizens of New Hampshire. We are committed to the provision
of services in a culturally sensitive environment, which promotes
independence and productivity.
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Certified Public Accountants

www.mclarneyco.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

J o llic Hoard of Directors
of Mortlieast Deaf and Hard of Hearing Services
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Northeast Deaf and Hard of Hearing Services (a nonprofit
organization), >vhich comprise the statement of financial position as of June 30, 2022 and 2021, and the related statements
of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
Northeast Deaf and Hard of Hearing Services as of June 30,2022 and 2021, and the changes in net ^sets and its cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards^ issued by the Comptroller General of
the United States Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of Northeast Deaf and Hard of
Hearing Services and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating
to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinions.

ResponsiblHties of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design, implementation, and
maintenance of intemal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or events, considered
in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about Northeast Deaf and Hard of Hearing Services' ability to continue as a
going concern within one year after the date that the financial statements are available to be issued.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes.our opinion. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing Standards will always detect a material
misstatement when It exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher.than for one
resulting from error, as fitiud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
intemal control. Misstatcments are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the
aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.

1

6 Courthouse Lane,
Chelmsford, MA 01824

Phone: (978) 453-2222
Fax: (978) 453-2882 McLarney & Company, LLC

OneTremont St.
Concord, NH 03301
Phone; (603) 224-4990

Fax: (603) 226-0030

Helping our clients keep more of what they earn.



In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing Standards, we:

•  Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

•  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, and
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis,
evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.

•  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Northeast
Deaf and Hard of Hearing Services* internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

•  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates
made by management, as vyell as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements.

•  Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial
doubt about Northeast Deaf and Hard of Hearing Services' ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable
period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control related matters that we identified during the
audit.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October 13, 2022, on our
consideration of Northeast Deaf and Hard of Hearing Services internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of
its cornpliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose
of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and
the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness ofNortheast Deaf and Hard of Hearing Services*
internal control over fmancial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance
with Government Auditing Standards in considering Northeast Deaf and Hard of Hearing Services s internal control over
financial reporting and compliance.

McLarr\ey & Company LLC

McLarney & Company, LLC
Chelmsford, MA
October 13,2022



Northcflst Dctif nnd Hiird of Hcnring Services
Stntcmcnts of Finniicinl Position

For the Ycnrs Ended June 30, 2022 nnd 2021

ASSETS

June 30,2022 . June 30,2021

Wiliiout Donor With Donor 2022 Without Donor Witli Donoi- 2020

Current Assets Restrictions Restrictions Total Restrictions Rcsti-iclions Total

Cash (Note 2,5) S 329.500 $ S 329.500 S 404 279 S S 404,279
Accounts Receivable (Note 2) 166,601 . 166,601 94.597 94,597
Grants Recelvabie • Current (Note 3, 5} 72,681 • 72,681 28.206 28206
Prepoid ENpenses 7.995 -  . 7.995 .3.439 . 3,439

Totiii Current Assets .  576,777
-

576,777 530,521 530,521

. Fixed Assets 1)

Furniture and Fixtures 7.756 7.756 7.756 7,756
Office Equipment, Computers 54,626 54,626 54,626 54,626
Soflware 21J28 21.228 21,228 21,228
Leasehold Improvements 3,455 3,455 3,455 3,455

Accumulated Depreciation (69,547) (69.547) (63.908) (63,908)
Total Fixed Assets, Net 17.519 17,519 23,158 23,158
Otiicr.Assets

Deposits 3,000 3.000 3.000 3.000
Total Other Assets 3,000 3,000 3,000 3,000

TOTAL ASSETS s 597,296 $ s 597,296 s 556,678 s S 556.678

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Current Liabilities

Accounts Payable s 21,109 S s 21,109 s 6,139 5 S  6.139
Current Portion PPP Loan (Note 8) - .  . . 21258 21258
Deferred Revenue 47,000 47,000 46,500 . 46200
Accrued Expenses 27.997 . 27.997 11.296 . 11296

Total Current Liabilities 96,106 - 96,106 85.193 . 85,193

Long Tcnn Debt (Note 8) 139254 139254

Totai Liabilities .  96.106 . 96,106 224,547 . 224.547

Net Assets

Net Assets (Note 2, 5) 501,187 - 501,187 332,131 332,131

TOTAL UABIUTIES AND NET ASSETS s 597,296 5 s 597JI96 s 556.678 S $ 556,678

See Accompnnying Notes and Auditor's Report

Page 3



Norllicast Deaf and Hard of Hearing Services
Scntciiicnts or Acli\iHcs

For the Years Ended June 30, 2022 and 2021

June 30, 2022 June 30,2021

Witliuut Donor

Restrictions

Witli Donor

Restrictions

2022

Total

Without Donor With Donor

Restrictions Restrictions

2021

Totnl

Revenue nnd Sunnnrt fNotc 7. Ot

Foundation Grants

Goveniinent Grants

Contributions

Program Revenue

Referral Fees

PPP extinguishment of Debt

Interest Income

S

280,379

25.292

620,454

72.327

.  160,612

84

S $

280,379

25,292

620,454

72.327

160,612

84

S  s .

170,235

14,364

417,914

56.360

215

$

170.235

14,364

417,914

56.360

215

TOTAL REVENUE AND SUPPORT 1.159,148 1,159,148 659.088 659.088

Fimclional Exocnscs

Procrnm Services:

SuPPOTlintt Services

General A Administrative

Fund Raising

831.097

158.995 •

831,097

158,5^5

595.678

112,635

595.678

11Z635

TOTAL FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES 990.092 990,092 708.313 708.313

CHANCE IN NET ASSETS (Note 9) 169,056 -• 169,056 (49,225) (49.225)

Net Assets • Beginning of Year 332.131 . 332.131 381.356 381.356

NET ASSETS - END OF YEAR S  501,187 s S  501,187 S . 332,131 S .$ 332.131

See Accompanying Notes ond Atidilor's Report

Paged



Northeast Deaf and Hard of Hearing Services
Statements of Cash Flows

June 30, 2021 and 2020

2022 2021

Cash Flows From Operating Activities
Change in Net Assets $  169,056 $  (49,225)
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net
cash provided (used) by operating activities
NON Cash Charges (Credits) to Change in Net Assets
Depreciation & Amortization 5,945 5,945
Gain on extinguishment of debt (160,612)
Allowance for bad debts 43,627 13,851
Changes in Working Capital
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable (115,935) (33,003)
(Increase) decrease in grants receivable (44,475) (8,672)
(Increase) decrease in prepaid expenses (4,555) 1,266
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable 14,969 15,890
Increase (decrease) in other accrued liabilities 16,701 13,779
Increase (decrease) in deferred revenue 500

o
o

Total adjustments (243,835) (49,783)

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities

Cash Flows Fi*om Financing Activities
Increase In PPP Loan

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Financing Activities

Cash Flows From Investing Activities
Purchase of fixed assets

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Investing Activities

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH

CASH AT BEGINNING OF YEAR

CASH AT END OF YEAR

Supplemental Cash Flow Disclosures

Interest Paid

Income Taxes Paud

Non Cash PPP Eiterest Accrual

$  (74.779) $ (99,008)

75,580

See Accompanying Notes and Auditor's Report

Page 5

75,580

(6,159)

$  (74,779) $ (29,587)

$  404,279 $ 433.866

$  329,500 $ 404,279

1,178



Northeast Deaf and Hard of Hearing Scn ices
Statements of Functional Expenses

For the Ycjir Ended June 30,2022 &2021

Advertising & Media Outreach

Contributions

Program Expenses
Interpreters Fees

Printing & Publications
'I'ravd

Personnel Expenses
Payroll Taxes

Fund Raising Expenses
Consulting
Dues, Subscriptioiis. Licenses

Repairs & Maintenance
Insurance

Email & Website

Referral Fees Expense
Staff Development. Training
Supplies
Teieplxme, Pagers

Allowance for Bad Debts

Miscellaneous

Interest/Finance Ciiarges
Accounting & Legal Services
Rau& Utilities

OfTice Expense
Depreciation and Amortir^tion

TOTAL EXPENSES

Program
Services

General &

Admintstraiive

Ftmd

Raising

2022

Total

Expenses
Program

Services

Genera! &

Admihistfatiw

2021

Fund Total

Raisthc: Expenses
S  1,839 I  1,401 S S  3340 Advertising & Media Outreach $ S  899 S  899

• - r Contributions - 500 500
10,657

- 10.657 Program Expenses 24364 2.103 26367
• • • Interpreters Fees 39.412 2,700 42,111
- • - Printing & Publications . 55 55

29.703 342 30.045 Tra>"d 10,474 236 10,710 -
427,729 62383 490,112 Personnel Expenses 303,074 52,161 355335
32,114 4367 36,481 I'ayroil Taxes 23,458 4,038 27,496

• Fund Raising Expenses .

203,397 7389 210,786 Consulting 95372 643 96.015
- - Dues, Subscriptions. Licenses . 412 412
• • - . Repairs & Maintaioncc . .

54,584 11368 65,953 Lisurance 37,828 7374, 45,101
" - Email & Website 2,552 521 .3,07.3

• Referral Fees Expense . 150 150
950 100 1,050 StalT Developinent. Training 130 .. T  130

5.368 2,727 8.095 Supplies 2.403 684 3.087
"  9,508 9,508 Tdcplwne, Pagers 8.925 329 9353 .

- 43,627 43,627 Allo\\'ance for Bad Debts 13.851 13.851
1,776 888 2,664 Miscellaneous 3368 5.915 9.183
- • • Interest/Finance Charges 1,178 1,178

8.372 13,408 21,780 Accounting & Legal SerA'ices 301 11.946 12,247
42,604 5,119 .47.722 Rent & Utilities 41,446 2300 43,746
2,495 236 2,731 Ofllce Expense 2.771 •196 2,968
- 5.640

- 5,640 Depreciation and Amortiration . 5,944 5,945
S  831.097 $  158,995 s S 990,091 TOTAL EXPENSES S 595,678 S  II2;633 S  - S 708.313

See Accompanying Notes and Auditor's Report
Page 6



NORTHEAST DEAF AND HARD OF HEARING SERVICES, INC.
■ Notes to the Finnncinl Stntenicnts

For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30,2022 and 2021

NOTE I - NATURE OF THE ORGANIZATION

Northeast Deaf and Hard of Hearing Services, Inc. (the "Organization") is a non-profit
organization dedicated to serving deaf and hard of hearing individuals in a culturally sensitive
environment that is communicationally unrestricted and "natural", and which promotes
independence and productivity. It is the mission of the organization to empower, educate and
advocate for equal access and opportunity for deaf and hard of hearing citizens ofNew
Hampshire.

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Net Assets

Net assets, revenues, gains, and losses are classified based on the existence or absence of donor
or grantor- imposed restrictions. Accordingly, net assets and changes therein are classified and
reported as follows;

Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions— Net assets available for use in general operations and
not subject to donor (or certain grantor) restrictions. The governing board has designated, from
net assets without donor restrictions, net assets for an operating reserve and board-designated
endowment.

Net Assets With Donor Restrictions - Net assets subject to donor- (or certain grantor-) imposed
restrictions. Some donor-imposed restrictions are temporary in nature, such as those that will be
met by the passage of time or other events specified by the donor. Other donor-imposed
restrictions are perpetual in nature, where the donor stipulates those resources be maintained in
perpetuity. Donor-imposed restrictions are.released when a restriction expires, that is, when the
stipulated time has elapsed, when the stipulated purpose for which the resource was restricted
has been fulfilled, or both.

Revenue & Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized when earned. Program service fees and payments under cost reimbursable
contracts received in advance are deferred to the applicable period in which the related services
are performed or expenditures are incurred, respectively. Contributions are recognized when
cash, securities or other assets, an unconditional promise to give, or notification of a beneficial
interest is received. Conditional promises to give are not recognized until the conditions on
which they depend have been substantially met.

Contributions received are recorded as net assets without donor restrictions or net assets with
donor restrictions, depending on the existence and/or nature of any donor-imposed restrictions.
Contributions that are restricted by the donor are reported as an increase in net assets without
donor restrictions if the restriction expires in the reporting period in which the contribution is
recognized. All other donor restricted contributions are reported as an increase in net assets with
donor restrictions, depending on the nature of restriction. When a restriction expires (that is,
when a stipulated time restriction ends or purpose restriction is accomplislied), net assets with donor
restrictions are reclassified to net assets without donor restrictions and reported in the statements of
activities as net assets released from restrictions. Contributed property' and equipment are recorded at fair
value at the date of donation. Contributions with donor-imposed stipulations regarding how long the
contributed assets must be used arc recorded as net assets with donor restrictions; otlicnvisc, the
contributions are recorded as net assets without donor restrictions.



NORTHEAST DEAF AND HARD OF HEARING SERVICES, INC.
Notes to the FinnncinI Statements

For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2022 and 2021

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES Continued

Donated Services and In-Kind Contributions:

Volunteers contribute significant amounts of time to our progi-am services, adniinisti'ation, and
fundraising and developm^t activities; however, the financial statemaits do not reflect the
value of these contributed services because they do not meet recognition criteria prescribed by
generally accepted accounting principles. Contributed goods are recorded at fail- value at the
date of donation. The Organization records donated professional services at the respective fair
values of tlie services received

Gash and Cash Eduivaleiits

The organization considers all cash and highly liquid financial instruments' with original
maturities of three months or less, which are neither held for nor restricted by donors for long-
term purposes, to be cash and cash equivalents.

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable are stated at the amount management expects to collect from balances
outstanding at year-end. Based on management's assessment of the credit history with the
agencies having outstanding balances and current relationships with, them, it has concluded
that realization losses on balances outstanding at year-end will be approxiniately $ 55,373 and
$13,851 for the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021 respectively.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles requires us to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues
and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates, and
those differences could be material.

The impact of the pandemic may result in a reasonably possibility that estimates will change by a
material amount in the near term, however, we are unable to assess these changes, if any, at this
point in time.

Advertising Costs

Advertising costs are expensed as incurred. Advertising costs approximated $3,240 and $0
during the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively.

Property and Eouipment

Property and equipment are recorded at cost, or, if donated, at the fair value at the date of
donation. Northeast Deaf and Hard of Hearing Services, Inc. follows the policy of capitalizing,
expenditures for property and equipment in excess of $500. Major renewals and improvements
are capitalized, while replacements, maintenance and repairs, which do not materially extend the
useful lives of the assets, are expensed. Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method
over the following estimated useful lives:

Office Equipment and Furniture 5-7 years
Development of Software - 5 years
Leasehold Improvements 5 years



NORTHEAST DEAF AND HARD OF HEARING SERVICES, INC.
Notes to the Finniicial Stnteinents

For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2022 and 2021

NOTE 2 - SHIVUVIARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES Coiifiiiued

Depreciation amounts expensed and reflected in the statements of activities for the fiscal years
ended June 30, 2022 and 2021 was $ 5,944 and $5,944, respectively. We review the carrying
values of property and equipment for impairment whenever events or circumstances indicate that
the carrying value of an asset may not be recoverable from the estimated future cash flows
expected to result from its use and eventual disposition. When considered impaired, an
impairment loss is recognized to the extent carrying value exceeds the fair value of the asset.
There were no indicators of asset impairment during the year ended June 30, 2022.

Income Taxes

The organization is organized as a nonprofit corporation and has been recognized by tiie IRS as
exempt from federal income taxes under IRC Section 501(c)(3), Thus it qualifies for the
charitable contribution deduction under IRC Sections 170(b)(I)(A)(vi). The organization is
annually required to file a Return of Organization Exempt from Income Tax (Form 990) with the
IRS. In addition, the entities are subject to income tax on net income that is derived from
business activities that are unrelated to their exempt purposes. Management has determined that
the organization is not subject to unrelated business income tax and has not filed an Exempt
Organization Business Income Tax Return (form 990-T) with the IRS.

Functional Expense Allocation

The costs of program and supporting services activities have been summarized on a functional
basis in the statement of activities. The statement of functional expenses presents the natural
classification detail of expenses by function. Accordingly, certain costs have been allocated
among the programs and supporting services benefited.

Shipping & Handling

All amounts billed to a customer in a sales transaction related to shipping and handling represent
revenues earned are reported as revenue/ Costs incurred by the Organization for shipping and
handling, including costs paid to third parties are reported as an expense.

Reclassifications

Certain reclassifications of amounts previously reported have been made to the accompanying
financial statements to maintain consistency between periods presented. The reclassifications had
no impact on previously reported net assets.

Pav Check Prdtection Loan

A nongovernmental entity may account for a Paycheck Protection (PPP) loan as a financial
liability in accordance with FASB ASC Topic 470, Debt. Under this model, the entity records the
cash inflow from the PPP loan as debt and accrues interest at the below market rate. The amount

remains a liability until either the loan is partly or wholly forgiven and the debtor has been
released or the debtor pays off the loan. If some or all of the loan is forgiven the liability would
be reduced and a gain on extinguishment is recognized.



NORTHEAST DEAF AND HARD OF HEARING SERVICES, INC.

Notes to the FinnncinI Stntemcnts

For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2022 and 2021

NOTE 3 - GRANTS RECEIVABLE

Grants receivables represent grants for which the donor organization lias unconditionally
committed to providing funding in the future. Grants receivables are recognized as income on
the statement of activities at the time the commitment is made by the donor organization. Grant
commitments which will not be received within the next twelve months are reflected.as other

assets on the statement of financial position. The method of accounting for grants receivable has
the effect of creating fluctuations between positive and negative changes in net assets from year
to year as reflected on the statement of activities. Grants for which the donor organization places
contingencies are recognized as support when the funds are actually received or when the
contingency has been satisfied. All grants are expected to be received; therefore, no allowance
for doubtful accounts has been established.

NOTE 4 - ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE:

The balance of Accounts receivable on June 30, 2022 and 2021 are comprised of the following.
2022 2021

Accounts Receivable $221,974 $108,448
Less: Allowance for Doubtful

Accounts (55,373) (13,851)

Net Accounts Receivable 94.597

NOTE 5- CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK

The Organization maintains an operating account at one bank. Operating accounts at an
institution are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDTC) up to $250,000. The
Organization exceeded the federally insured limits throughout the fiscal year. Cash at this
institution exceeded Federally insured limits at June 30, 2022 and 2021 by $78,895 and
$ 154,279, respectively.

The Organization receives all its revenue from New Hampshire sources. 58% of the Accounts
receivable balance is concentrated in the five largest customers.

Certain types of concentrations may be more relevant to the financial statement due to the
impacts of the pandemic. For example, these may include concentrations in labor, financial
assets, sources of supply, or customers that have been or will be impacted by the pandemic. We
are unable to assess these potential impacts at this time.

NOTE 6- COMMITMENTS

The Organization entered into a lease for office space in Concord, New Hampshire in 2017 for
five years until March 2022 for $3,000 per month until April 2020 when the rent will be $3,150
per month. This lease was renewed in April of 2022 for an additional five-year period ending on
March 31, 2027. The monthly rent under this lease renewal Is as follows: $3,150 for the first two
years then $3,350 per month for the next three-year period. Rent expense for the facility for the
years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021 were $37,800 and $36,450 respectively.

10



NORTHEAST DEAF AND HARD OF HEARING SERVICES, INC
Notes to the Fiiinncifll Stntenients

For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2022 and 2021

Nd^ 6-GOMMTMeNTS CONTJNU

The Organization also has the following operating leases for otHce equipment: a copier lease
having monthly payments of $136.50 which began on June 1, 2017 and matures on May
31,2022. Upon maturity the Organization entered into a five-year lease beginning on May 5,

2022 and ending on April 5, 2027 for $167. Per month, a telephone system lease having monthly
payments of $205 beginning on April 18, 2017 and ending on March 16, 2022 and finally a
stamp machine lease with monthly payments of $45 beginning on May 15, 2020 and ending in
August of 2026.

Future minimum lease payments required for the year ended:
6/30/2023 $40,344

6/30/2024 40,944
6/30/2025 42,744

6/30/2026 42,294

6/30/2027 31,987
Thereafter 0

NOTE 7- FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

The financial statements report certain categories of expenses that are attributed to more than one
program or supporting function. Therefore, expenses require allocation on a reasonable basis that
is consistently applied. The expenses that are allocated include occupancy, depreciation, and
amortization, which are allocated on a square footage basis, as well as salaries and wages,
benefits, payroll taxes, professional services, office expenses, information technology, interest,
insurance, and other, which are allocated on the basis of estimates of time and effort;

N0TE8-PPPDEBT

On April 22, 2020, the. Organization received loan proceeds in the amount of approximately
$85,032 and on April 1, 2021 received $74,402 for a total of $159,434 under the Pay-check
Protection Program ("PPP"). The PPP, established as part of the Coronavirus Aid, Relief and
Economic Security Act ("CARES Act"), provides for loans to qualifying businesses for amounts
up to 2.5 times of the average monthly payroll expenses of the qualifying business. The loans
and accrued interest are forgivable after eight weeks as long as the borrower uses the loan
proceeds for eligible purposes, including payroll, benefits, rent and utilities, and maintains its
payroll levels. The amount of loan forgiveness will be reduced if the borrower terminates
employees or reduces salaries during the twenty-four-week period.

The unforgiven portion of the PPP loan is payable over two years and five years respectively at
an interest rate of 1%, with a deferral of payments for the first six months, which was accrued for
the first loan in the amount of $1,178. The Organization intends to use the proceeds for purposes
consistent with the PPP. The Organization currently believes that its use of the loan proceeds will
meet the conditions for forgiveness of the loan. During the year ended June 30, 2022 the
Organization received forgiveness of both loans from the SBA.

11



NORTHEAST DEAF AND HARD OF HEARING SERVICES, INC.
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30,2022 and 2021

NOTE 8 - PPF DEBT Continued

2022 2021

Small Business Administration Loans $ - $160,612

Less Current Portion ofLoans - -21258

Long Term Notes Payable $ - $ 139,354

Principle Maturities ofLong Term Debt were as follows on June 30, 2022

6/30/2022

6/30/2023

6/30/2034

6/30/2025

6/30/2025

Diereafler

NOTE 9- LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITy

Financial assets available for general expenditure, that is, without donor or other restrictions
limiting their use, within one year of the balance sheet date, comprise the following:

2022 2021

Cash $329,500 $404,279

Accounts Receivable
166,601 94,597

Grants Receivable
72,681 28,206

Financial Assets available to meet cash need for

general expenditure within one year
$568,782 $527,081

12



NORTHEAST DEAF AND HARD OF HEARING SERVICES, INC.

Notes to the Financial Statements

For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30,2022 and 2021

NOTE 9- LTOUrDlTy AND AVAILABILITY CONTINUED

Northeast Deaf and Hard of Hearing Services, Inc. is substantially supported by restricted
contractual or grant payments which are all expected to expire within a twelve- month period.
Because a contact's or grant's restriction s requires resources to be used in a particular manner or in a
future period Northeast Deaf and Hard of Hearing Services, Inc. must maintain sufficient resources
to meet those responsibilities. As part of Northeast Deaf and Hard of Hearing Services, Inc.
liquidity management, it has a policy to structure its financial assets to be available as its general
expenditures, liabilities, and other obligations come due. As part of our liquidity management plan,
we invest cash in excess of daily requirements in short-term investments, CDs, and money market
funds.

NOTE 10- SUBSEQUENT E VENTS

The Organization has evaluated subsequent events through October 13, 2022, which is the date
the financial statements were available to be issued for events requiring recording or disclosure
in the financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2022 and none were found.

13
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE

AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH

GOVERmdEhTTA UDJTJNG STANDARDS

To Uie Board of Tnislees of

Northeast Deaf and Hard of Hearing Services

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in tlie United States of America and tiie standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Audiiing Standards issued by Uie Comptroller General of Llie United States, llic
financial statements of Nortlieast Deaf and Hard of Hearing Ser\'ices (a nonprofit organization), which comprise llie statement of
financial position as of June 30, 2022 and the related statements of activities, and cash flows for the year Uicn ended, and the related
notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report tlwreon dated October 13, 2022.

Rcpoii on Internal Control over Financial Repoiling

In planning and pcrfonning our audit of die financial statements, we considered Northeast E>eaf and Hard of Hearing Services' internal
control over fmancial reporting (internal control) as a basis for desigrung audit procedures diat are appropriate in the circumstances for
tlie purpose of expressing our opinion on tlie financial statemenis, but not for die purpose of e.xpressing an opinion on the efiectiveness
of Noitlicast Deaf and Hard of Hearing Services internal control. Accordingly, wc do not express an opinion on Ute effectiveness of
Nordieasi Deaf and Hard of Hearing Services' internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control docs not allow management or employees, in die nonnal
course of pcrfonning their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, misslatements, on a timely basis. A material weakness
is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, sucli dial tliere is a reasonable possibility diat a material misstatement

•of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control Uiat is less severe tlian a matcri^ weakness, yet important enough to
merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for die limited purpose described in die first paragraph of Uiis section and was not designed to
identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given diese limitations, during
our audit we did not identify an>' deficiencies in inlemal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist diat were not identified.

Report on Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about wheUier Nordieast Deaf and Hard of Hearing Services financial statements are free from
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance widi certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements,
nonccmpliance wiUi wliich could liave a direct and material effect on die financial statements. However, providing an opinion on
compliance wiUi tliose provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. Die results of
our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliancc or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of This Report

The purpose of diis report is solely to describe tlic scope of our testing of internal conuol and compliance and die results of diat testing,
and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the organization's internal control or on compliance. Tliis report is an integral part
of an audit perfonned in accordance widi Government Auditing Standards in considering die organization's inlemal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any bdier purpose.

& Co-vvi^>Ci4^j LLO

McLamcy & Company LLC
Chelmsford, MA 01824

October 13, 2022
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Board of Directors List

The governing board of Northeast Deaf and Hard of Hearing consists of Community Members, of
which at least fifty-one percent must be Deaf or Hard of Hearing, The primary duties of the board-are
to supervise the Executive Director, develop policies for the agency, oversee the agency's finances
and to raise funds. Between meetings, members are expected to be on committees and to actively
raise funds. The average commitment for our board members is about four hours per month.

Chairman of the Board Michael Ritter

Executive Committee

Term Ends: October 2024

Vice Chairman Norman Lafond Sr.

Executive Committee

Term Ends: October 2024

Treasurer Larry Parrel!
Executive Committee

Term Ends; January 2024

Secretary Peter Simoneau

Executive Committee

Term Ends: January 2024

Board Member Vincent Youmatz

Executive Committee / Legal Council

Term Ends: October 2024

Board Member Lori McLaren

Term Ends: January 2024

Board Member Deborah Bailey

Term Ends: January 2024

Board Member Tina Cook

Term Ends: October 2022

Board Member Gerry Monroe

Term Ends: July 2022

Board member Rickey Persons

Term Ends: January 2025

Board member Susan Wolf-Downes

Term Ends: October 2024

Board member Open '



NORTHEAST DEAF AND HARD OF HEARING SERVICES

Key Personnel

Name Job Title Salary (docs

not include

benefits)

Amount Paid from

this Contract

Hannah Nicid Teacher of the Deaf 53,662.50 3206.50

Pamela Lovejov Procram Coordinator i PT) 40.450.0^ 176.25

Gaylc Baird (will
replace next month)

Accountant 57,685.16 165.00

Michelle McConaghY Executive Director 83.298.24 423.50



Hannah Neild

An accomplished aspiring, pcoplc-oricntcd, professional and resourceful leachcr of the deaf with experience seeking
to secure a challenging position to utilize and expand my learnings, knowledge and skills, while making a significant
contribution that increases student performance.

EDUCATION

Gallaudet University, Washington, D.C.
Bachelor of Arts in Early Childhood Education (2019)
Master of Arts Deaf Education (2021)

NCAA Leadership Seminar (2021)

PROFESSrONAL EXPERIENCE

Northeast Deaf and Hard of Hearing Services, Concord, NH August 2021 - Present
Teacher ofthe Deaf and Hard of Hearing
- Build trusting relationships with students, parents and co-teachers
- Assess, Plan and Implement lesson plans aligned with students' present levels of skills and identified

areas of need

~ Implement Individualized Education Plans and collaborate with staff on data collection and lEP
progress reports

. ~ Manage student caseload ranging from early intervention to high school ages across various
districts throughout the state of NH

- Coordinate pre-employment transition services for deaf and hard of hearing students

Canterbury Woods Elementary School, Annandale, VA February 2021 - June 2021
Teacher ofthe Deaf and Hard ofHearing
~ Build trusting relationships with students, parents and co-teachers
- Asses.s, Plan and Implement lesson plans aligned with students' present levels of skills
- implement Individualized Education Plans and collaborate with stafTon data collection and lEP

progress reports.

- Worked with individual students and small groups on various topics based on need

Canterbury Woods Elementary School, Annandale, VA September 2020 - February 2021
Education Program Student Teacher
~ Build trusting relationships with students, parents and co-teachers
- Assess, Plan and Implement lesson plans aligned with students' present levels of skills
~ Worked with individual students and small groups on various topics based on need

Gallaudet University, Washington, DC August 2020 - May 2021
Sports Information Director's Office Graduate Assistant
~ Assists with day-to-day operations of Sports information Office
- Take leadership of website maintenance and team roster updates
- Complete various projects as assigned to support the upkeep of the Sports Information Office



Gallaudet University, Washington, DC February 202! - May 2021
Education Department Teacher Assistant
~ Work as a teacher assistant in a graduate level linguistic course at Gallaudet University
- Attend weekly class sessions and participate in student activities and lectures
~ Collaborate with course instructor for grading and in-class supports
- Mold regular tutoring office hours for students to support with homework, tests and study lips

Gallaudet University, Washington, DC January 2020 - May 2020
Sports Information Director's Office Student Intern
- Assists with day-to-day operations
- Set up, operate and close down game day equipment as required
- Complete various projects as assigned to support the upkeep of the Sports Information Office

Kendall Demonstration Elementary School, Washington, DC January 2020 - March 2020
Education Program Student Intern
- Assists with day-to-day management of a M'/2"'' grade classroom
- Worked with individual students and small groups on various topics and activities

Gallaudet University, Washington, DC September 2018 - May 2020
Department of Public Safety Front Desk Assistant
- Manages day-to-day parkihg and ID tasks and transactions
- Assists Gallaudet community in communication with dispatch workers and public safet)' officers
~ Provides Information to questions regarding Gallaudet's campus and emergency services

School Without Walls at Francis Stevens, Washington, DC February 2019-May 2019
Education Program Student Intern
- Assists with day-to-day management of a pre-kindergarten classroom
- Worked with individual students and small groups on various topics and activities
- Attended weekly professional development meetings with Early Childhood Education team

Executive Health and Fitness Center, Manchester, NH Summer 2017 - 2019
Female Lead Summer Camp Counselor
- Communicated effectively with staff and parents on a daily basis with any progress, behavior and

health related topics
- Supervised children ages 5 to 14
~ Organized camp activities with my co-lead counselor for the duration of the summer
- Established a trusting relationship between campers, parents and my fellow counselors

HONORS AND AWARDS

Academic Awards

Dean's List September 2015 - May 2020
NE-IO Honor Roll September 2015 - May 2017
Presidents Scholarship with Honors Gallaudet University August 2017 - May 2020
National Fastpitch Coaches Association All America Scholar-Athlctc 2017 - 2018
Chi Alpha Sigma National College Athlete Honor Society 2018
Gallaudet University Dorothy Jordan Education Scholarship 2019
A! Van Novel Memorial Award 2019
NCAA Woman of the Year Finalist 2019
Gallaudet University Education Department Outstanding Undergraduate Award 2020



Gallaudet University Clerc Scholarship Award 2020
Helen Fay Graduate Award 2021

Professional references available when mutual interest is established.

Athletic Awards

Merrimack Athletic Scholarship September 2015 - May 2017
U21 Deaf Basketball World Championships Gold Medalist 2018
U2I Deaf Basketball World Championships All-Toumameni Team 2018
NEAC Softball Rookie of the Year 2018
Team USA Deaf Olympic Basketball Team 2016 - Present
Gallaudet University Female Athlete of the Year 2018 and 2019
NEAC Women's Basketball Player of the Year 2019
Academic All-America Honors (Women's.Basketball) 2019
Google Cloud Academic All-America Women's Basketball Division III Team Member of the Year 2019
Google Cloud Academic All-District Honors (Softball) 2019
CoSlDA Academic All-America Honors (Basketball, Softball and Soccer) 2019
New Hampshire Female Athlete of the Year 2015
Wendy's High School Heisman Athlete 2015

VOLUNTEER EXPERIENCE

Youth Basketball Coach, Litchficid, NH November 2015 -March 2015
- Develop a trusting relationship between players, parents and fellow coaches.
- Interact with players during drills and games to develop their confidence and help build on their
abilities.

- Stand as a role model for young, hopeful kids on how become a successful student-athlete.

Gallaudet University Basketball Clinics, Framingham, MA and Plains, NY Nov. 20]7 - Feb. 2019
~ New York State School for the Deaf and The Learning Center for the Deaf.
- Assist in running a basketball clinic for the students at both schools.
~ Talk with students during the meal about their various questions.
~ Serve as a role model for the Deaf and Hard of Hearing students.

Transition Fair Day for NH Deaf/Hard of Hearing Students, Concord, NH ► May 2019
- Assist families learning about continuing education opportunities for Deaf/Hard of Hearing students.
~ Promote socialization between student attendees.
- Lead a Q & A sessions for parents and students.
~ Serve as a role model for the Deaf and Hard of Hearing students.

SKILLS

Bilingual (English and American Sign Language)
Strong Verbal Communications Skills
Leadership
Time Management
Creative
Microsoft: Word, PowerPoint and Excel
ACTIVITIES



NCAA Division II Women's Basketball August 2015 - May 2017
NCAA Division III Women's Basketball, Soccer and Softball August 2017 - November 2020
National Society of Leadership and Success September 2016 - Present
Honors Program January 2016 - May 2020
USA Deaf Women's Basketball Association June 2016 - Present



PAMELA D. LOVEJOY

EDUCATION

Gallaudct University, Washington, D.C.
Master of Arts, Dual license in Deaf Education and Early Childhood Education Dec. 2012
Certification: Deaf and Hard of Hearing Infants, Toddlers and Families Aug. 2012

College of the Holy Cross, Worcester, MA
Bachelor of Arts, Cum Laude, Psychology, Deaf Studies Certificate May 2009

EXPERIENCE

Northeast Deaf and Hard of Hearing Services (NDHHS), Concord, NH
Education & Resource Center Program Coordinator/ Teacher ofthe Deaf July 2017-present
■  Collaborate with Family-Centered Early Supports and Services early intervention programs and

school districts across NH to provide consultation and direct services, as well as develop
contracts for services

Coordinate NH's Deaf/Hard of Hearing Role Model Program
Provide oversight for outreach team members within NDHHS's Education 8c Resource Center
Complete initial, ongoing and transition to Part B assessments/evaluations
Participate in IFSP and lEP meetings
Provide trainings related to working with children who are deaf or hard of hearing

The Maine Educational Center for the Deaf & Hard of Hearing, Brewer, ME
Teacher ofthe Deaf/Early Childhood and Family Services Consultant Nov 2014-June 2017
■  Provided home visits, specially designed instruction and consultation services to families, their

children who are deaf or hard of hearing, ages 0-5, and educational programs
■  Participated in IFSP and lEP team meetings
•. Collaborated with regional early intervention team members and attended team meetings on a

weekly basis
•  Completed assessments for eligibility and transition purposes
•  Maintained up to date records through a statewide computer data system

Onslow County Partnership for Children, Jacksonville, NC
Early Head Start Home Visitor July 20I3-Oct20l4
■  Delivered comprehensive services to low-income families and their children, ages 0-3, as well as

expectant families in a home-based setting
■  Collaborated with families on a weekly basis to develop and prepare lesson plans for their

children

•  Partnered with community agencies to provide resources and referrals to families
•  Maintained accurate and timely documentation for all services provided
■  Planned and facilitated bi-monthly group socialization experiences for children and families

Davila Day School for the Deaf, San Diego, CA
Substitute Teacher Jan-April 2013
■  Instructed approximately 6-8 deaf/hard of hearing preschool students in a special education

program

California School for the Deaf, Riverside, Riverside, CA
Student Teacher Fall 2012



■  Responsible for full-day planning and teaching of first grade students for a period of 10 weeks
•  Developed and supervised activities for children ages 3-18 during the weekly family sign classes

Montgomery County Infants and Toddlers Program, Montgomery County, MD
Intern Spring 2012
■  Observed weekly home visits, team meetings, assessments and development of an IFSP

Bridges Public Charter School, Washington, D.C.
Sludent Teacher Spring 2012
■  Assumed all classroom roles and responsibilities in a preschool setting (ages 3-5)
■  Assisted supervising teacher with classroom activities, lessons and plans

Princeton in Asia Fellowship, Nan, Thailand
Teaching Fellow June 2009-Fcb 2010
•  Taught English to over 200 students in northern Thailand, ages 9-1 1
■  Developed weekly lesson plans and materials to provide English instruction to second language

learners

University of Massachusetts Early Intervention and Family Support Program, Worcester, MA
intern Spring 2009
■  Shadowed a speech and language pathologist on weekly home visits and intakes
•  Assisted with weekly playgroups for children ages 0-3 with developmental delays, observing

development and writing daily progress reports for each child

LICENSES/CREDENTIALS

State of New Hampshire May 2017
■  Teacher of the Deaf and Hard of Hearing

American Sign Language Proficiency Interview (ASLPI), Level 3 March 201 1



Michelle McConaghy

Experience

Summary:

Experienced Professional with over twenty years assisting individuals with disabilities achieve
independence through identifying measurable steps that provide a solid foundation for successful
outcomes. Well versed in major legislation including the American with Disabilities Act (ADA), Americans
with Disabilities Act Amendments Act (ADAA), Rehabiiitation Act, and the Workforce Innovation and
Opportunity Act (WlOA). A passionate advocate and evangelist for the disability community that leads by
example via a resolute optimism towards life and individual potential.

Skills:

Case Management
Team Leadership
Public Speaking
Written & Verbal Communication

Accommodation Specialist
Transition Consulting
Active Listening
Assistive Technology
Service Orientation

Community Outreach
Critical Thinking
Deaf Culture

Team Building
American Sign Language
ADA and Section of 503/504 of Rehabilitation Act

MSOffice Suite

Mac Office Suite

Data Analysis

Experience:

Executive Director

Northeast Deaf and Hard of Hearing Services
Octot>er 2020- Present

Concord. NH, 03301

www.ndhhs.org
•  Develop and direct organizational strategy and services, in conjunction with the board of directors
•  Attend various informational/outreach meetings for purposes of disseminating information about

NDHHS,

•  Engage ongoing communication with various service providers, agencies, businesses,
organizations, civic groups and other interested parties.

•  Prepare comprehensive budgets.
•  Reporting on revenue and expenditures
•  Oversee and direct general fundraising activities and grant application and funding Write grants

and seek other funding sources. .
•  Recruit and supervise NDHHS staff and contractors
•  Overseeing day-to-day business activities.
•  Assess the need and scope of services to be provided.

Vocational Rehabilitation Counselor Lead

Washington State Division of Vocational Rehabilitation
April 1999 - September 2020
Seattle, Washington, United States
httDs://www.dshs.wa.Qov/dvr

•  Provide vocational counseling to assist customers in gaining an understanding of their disabilities,
potential impediments to employment, and related issues that must be considered in selecting an
employment goal including carrying out a successful Individualized Plan for Employment
(IPE). Manage an average caseload of one hundred and ten customers living with a variety of
disabilities in order to achieve successful employment outcomes.



Determine client eligibility for a federally funded vocational program by evaluating and analyzing
necessary medical, psychological, social, educational, vocational, and financial information to
use for vocational planning.
Conduct intakes and determine customer's needs to provide or arrange vocational rehabilitation
services that include guidance and counseling, assessment, transition from high school to
employment required to achieve and maintain employment goals.
Oversee the delivery of Pre-Employment Transition Services for students with disabilities in order
to ensure ED plan adherence. Develop relationships with students, school districts, family
members, and government agencies in order to ensure successful career placement.
Manage expenditures within an allotment of case service funds in excess of $150,000, for the
diagnostic evaluation of the customer or required for the implementation of vocational
rehabilitation services Identified on the IPE.

Utilize electronic case management system to conduct all facets of documentation, including
current record of vocational rehabilitation services, noting functional limitations, key decisions and
activities while an active case.

Conduct community outreach initiatives through presentations and collaboration with partners and
multiple stakeholders.

Assigns and coaches staff within office regarding best practices in the delivery of vocational
rehabilitation counseling practices, service delivery policies and procedures, case management,
and funding approval in the absence of office supervisor.
Assists In the development of agendas and office meetings along with external presentations to
partners and community stakeholders.
Participate In a committee to coordinate and plan the annual Deaf2Deaf BIzTown event:
httos://vimeoprQ.cQm/seaQomedia/la-biztown

Director

Pathfinder Transition Network (PTN)
February 1997 - August 1998
Klntersville, Pennsylvania, United States
•  Co-founded and managed social service agency incorporating technology-based training for the

Deaf and Hard of Hearing-individuals. Worked directly with Deaf and Hard of Hearing clients in
obtaining and maintaining employment.

• Worked in concert with clients to identify assistlve technology and services that helped to remove
barriers to work, in addition educated employers in providing accommodations and accessibility
awareness.

•  Managed internal budget of $150,000 dollars and secured individual funding for customer needs
via external State, Local, and Federal channels.

•  Facilitated communication and job skills acquisition with consumers to ensure long term
employment success.

Program Specialist
Lehigh Valley Community Foundations Inc.
February 1996 - November 1996

Bethlehem, Pennsylvania, United States

h"ttDs://www.lehiQhvallevfoundation:orQ

•  Coordinated, facilitated and assisted with medical, behavior programs, appointments, and
activities for individuals with disabilities.

•  Consistently and accurately maintained client records in compliance with local, state, federal,
agency and contractual regulations or requirements

•  Assisted with the supervision and management of both client's individual and house financial
accounts.

•  Supervised and oversaw the staffing support In the homes, working to promote staff cohesion and
build staff morale.



•  Provided personnel supervision to assigned staff.
•  Maintained and sustained positive working relationships with participants' families and friends,

vocational program staff, day program staff. DOA Case/Resource Management and other service
providers.

Employment Specialist
Employment Technology Inc.
February 1990 - April 1994
Doylestown, Pennsylvania. United States
http /erhPtech.dfd

Worked directly with an average of fifty individuals with disabilities in obtaining and maintaining
employment.

Interfaced with employers and educated them on the positive impact individuals experiencing
disabilities and barriers can have on the workplace.

Developed thorough knowledge of local, regional, and national labor trends, career openings and
search strategies, along with additional resources in order to assist clients in a successful career
search.

Maintained up-to-date case notes detailing the goals of clients and work-related activities.
Provided job training and supervision to clients at job sites including: performing task analysis,,
breaking down tasks and teaching new ways to perform them.
Performed time studies, documented piece rate activity and monitored quality control.
Worked alongside the disabled customers until they learned to function at an acceptable
performance rate.

•  Monitored client's behavioral objectives and provided behavioral interventions when necessary.

Education:

Bachelor of Social Work: Temple University
Master of Rehabilitation Counseling: University of Kentucky



Gayle P. Baird

Experience

Northeast Deaf and Hard of Hearing Services, Inc. (NDHHS), Concord NH 05/2015 - Present
Accountant / Human Resources I Payroll

Perform highly complex budgetary work as well as more diverse administrative duties involving fiscal,
personnel/payroll, and purchasing management necessary for general function of multiple projects within
the organization. Additional tasks include; Accounts Payable and Receivable processing, grant and
contract tracking and review, HR Policies and Procedures documentation, and supervision of staff.
NH Governor's Commission on Disability, Concord NH 12/2007 - 05/2015

Accountant I / Human Resources / Payroll
Perform complex budgetary work as well as diverse admin duties to include personnel and payroll,
project contracts for both state and federal, purchasing, A/P and A/R management necessary for general
function of multiple organizational codes.
NH Governor's Commission on Disability, Concord NH 06/2005 - 12/2007

Senior Accounting Technician
Review, process, and report A/P & AIR as well as budget creation, employee management, grants,
strategic planning organization, member tracking, purchasing and inventory control, and payroll. ■

NH Governor's Commission on Disability, Concord NH 09/2004 - 06/2005
Secretary il

Supervision of other employees doing related or similar work, including scheduling, time, accuracy,
performance appraisal, discipline, and recommending interviewing, hiring or terminating.
ProTemps. Concord NH 02/2004 - 09/2004

Temporary Accounting Staff to Pembroke Academy
Douglas, Leonard & Garvey, PC, Concord NH 11/2002 - 02/2004

Bookkeeper
Merges two accounting packages into one. Responsible for all data entry and payroll,
Lavallee/Brensinger, PA, Manchester NH 07/1993 - 11/2002

Administrative Assistant

Draft/format/proof confidential correspondence; architectural specifications; dictation for staff;
update/create master docs, reports, templates; and forms. Backup assistant for accounting data entry.
SOA//-/AM (BankOne NH Asset Management, a section of the FDIC taking receivership of 13 banks in
NH), Concord NH

ORE File Library Supervisor 04/1992 - 07/1993
Developed the library; trained/supervised 2 staff & volunteers, generated reports and audits regarding
data collection and distribution of properties.
BONHAM (BankOne NH Asset Management, a section of the FDIC taking receivership of 13 banks in
NH). Concord NH

Database Manager and Admin Assistant II 07/1991 -04/1992
Addressed the growing list of received properties managed by various banks and processed by various
loan officers.

Office Specialists, Manager & Central NH Employment, Laconia, NH
Temp Secretary & Admin Assist to real estate, Financial, Legal Firms 03/1991 - 06/1991

Education

Franklin Pierce University, Concord, NH - Working on Bachelor of Science in Business Management and
Accounting (2 courses from Certificate) Ongoing

SoNH - HR Certificate Program 08/2008
SoNH - Certified Public Supervisor Program 06/2006
SoNH - Certified Public Supervisor Program Tune-up 09/2008
Justice of the Peace, NH Current, Expires 05/01/2024
Littleton High School, Littleton, MA - Business/Office Program 06/1971
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Frank Edslblut ^ ^ Christina M. Brannan
Commteiooar *" Deputy CommiMioner

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

25 Hall Street

Concord, N.H. 03301
TEL (603) 271-3495
FAX (603) 271-1953

August 1 1, 2023

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Education, Bureau of Vocational Rehabilitation (VR) to enter into a
sole source contract with Northeast Deaf and Hard of Hearing Services. INC. (NDHHS)
Concord, NH (Vendor Code 159021), in an amount not to exceed $30,000, to provide outreach
to agency stakeholders to support identifying undcrscrved populations of deaf and hard of
hearing youth to ensure the resources and information relating to prc-cmployment services and
raise awareness of VR services, effective upon Governor and Council approval through June 30,
2024. 100% Federal Funds.

Funds to support this request are available in FY2024 in the account titled VR Field Programs-
Federal as follows:

06-56-56-565010-25380000-102-500731 FY2024

Contracts for Program Services $30,000

EXPLANATION

This request is sole source because NDHHS has established strong relationships within the deaf
community and works with students who arc deaf providing Prc-Employmeni Transition Services.
Given its specialized services and established track record, NDHHS is the reasonable choice in
New Hampshire equipped to meet this underserved population's needs effectively. Therefore, the
sole source procurement of services from NDHHS is recommended to ensure the continued
support and empowerment of deaf, hard of hearing, and deatblind individuals in the state.
NDHHS is a non-profit organization that has exclusive provision of a comprehensive range of
services for deaf, hard of hearing, and deafblind individuals across multiple settings. The
organization has a-dedicated outreach team that can collaborate and engage with targeted VRNH
stakeholders; school districts, educators, audiologists, nur.ses, related service providers,
interpreters, families and community agencies in densely populated areas identifying traditionally

TDDAcc««s: Relay NH 711
EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER- EQUAL EDUCATIONAL OPPORTUNITIES



His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

Page 2 of 2

undcrservcd populations of deaf and hard of hearing youth to ensure the resources and information
relating to pre-employment services (Pre-ETS) and raise awareness of VRNH ser^'ices. Their team
comprising of professionals who specialize in working with this population, including Teachers of
the deaf and hard of hearing, Spoken Language Specialists, Educational Audiologists, School
Psychologist, Educational Interpreters, etc. This diverse team, predominantly comprised of deaf
or hard-of-hearing staff, brings a unique network of expertise to their services. They are well-
positioned to engage and raise awareness of Prc-Employment Transition Services among
potentially eligible individuals.aged 14-22. NHDDS's mission is dedicated to serving dcafand
hard of hearing individuals in an environment that is communicatively unrestricted and "natural"
to them. NDHHS is committed to hiring staff members who are fluent in sign language and capable
of identifying and meeting consumers' preferred mode of communication. NDHHS seeks to
empower, educate, and advocate for equal access and opportunity for Deaf and Hard of hearing
citizens of New Hampshire. They are committed to the provision of services in a culturally
sensitive environment, which promotes independence and productivity.

The number of deaf and hard of hearing students on an Individualized Education Plan has
decreased over the past ten years resulting in a disproportionate percentage of student receiving
special education services. This has made it difficult for VR to locate the students who would be
eligible for VR services. Among the deaf community, more deaf-blind (5.8%) and deaf-disabled
youth (6.7%) received pre-employment services than deaf youth without additional disabilities
(3.3%). Overall, a smaller percentage of deaf youth who have applied for or received services
through VR received pre-employment transition services (4.4%) when compared to other disability
groups (10.5%). Repons indicate a significant number of deaf and hard of hearing students receive
accommodations and supports through a 504 plan as opposed to Individualized Education Plan
services. As a result, dcafand hard of hearing students may be slipping through the cracks due to
inconsistent practices in reporting, assessment, special education eligibility, and primary and
secondary determination and the use of 504 plans for accommodations in replace of Individualized
Education Plans.

Respectfully Submitted,

Frank Edelblui

Commissioner of Education

TDD Access; RolayNH 711
EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER- EQUAL EDUCATIONAL OPPORTUNITIES



FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 2/23/2023)

Notice: This agreement and allofiisaiiachmcnts shall become public upon submission to Govcmorand
Executive Council for approval. Any information that is private, confidential or proprietary must
be clearly idcntined to the agency and agreed to in writing prior to signing the contract.

AGREEMENT

The State of New Hampshire and the Con traciorhercby mutually agree as follows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS

IDF.NTIFiCATION.
l.l State Agency Name
New Hampshire Department ofEducation
(NHED)

1.2 State Agency Address
25 Hall Street

Concord. NK 03301

1.3 ContraciorName

Nonhcasi Deaf and Hard of Hearing Services, INC.
1.4 Contractor Address

56 Suncook Road

Concord.NH 03301

1.5 Contractor Phone

Number

(603)463-0148

1.6 Account Unit and Class

See Exhibit C

1.7 Compkiion Date
June 30,2024

1.8 price Limitation

S30.000

1.9 Contracting Officer for Slate Agency
Lisa Hinson-Haiz

1.10 Stale Agency Telephone Number
603-419-0086

l.l l Contrac^t,Stgn«»ure 1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory
Michelle McConoghy Executive Director

l.l^- State A^ncy SignY<v4 1.14 Name and Title of State Agency Signatory
Frank Edclblut - Commissioner

1.15 Approval by the N.H. Dcpanment of Administration, Division of Personnel f?/applicable)

By: Director. On:

1.16 Approval by the Attorney General (Form, Substance and Execution) f»/opp/icobfe.)

(L On:

1.17 Approval by the Governor and Executive Council (7/applicable)

G&C Item number G&C Meeting Date:

Page 1 of 4
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2. SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED. The Siaic of New

Hampshire, acting through ihc agency identified in block 1.)
("Siaic'l.cngagcs eontractoridcntincd in block 1.3 {"Contractof")
to pcrfofm, and the Conlraciorshall perform, ihc work or sale of
goods, or both, identified and more particularly described in the
attached EXHIBIT B which is incorporated herein by reference
("Services").

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.

3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approvaiof the Govcmor'and B.tccuttvc
Council of Ihc State of New Hampshire, if applicable, this
Agreement, and airobligaiions of the panics hercunder. shall
become effective on the date the Govcmorand Executive Council

approve this Agreement, unless no Such approval is reCiuircd. in
which case the Agreement shall become effective on the date the
Agreement is signed bythe State Agency as shown in block 1.13
{"Effective Date").
3 2 I fihc Con tractor commences the Services prior to the Effective
Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior to the
Effective Date .shall be performed at the sole risk of the Contractor,
and in the event that this Agreement docs not become effective, the
State shall have no liability to the Contractor, including without
Innitaiion, any obligation to pay the ConiQCiOr for any costs
incurred or Services performed.
3 J Contraeiormust complete a It Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contra ly,
a II obligations of the State hcrcundcr, including, without limitation,
the continuance of payments hcrcundcr.arc contingent upon the
a va liability and continued appropriation of funds. In no event shall
the State be liable for any payments hcrcundcr in excess of such
available appropriated funds. In the event of a reduction or
termination of appropriated funds by any state or federal legislative
or executive action that reduces, eliminates or otherwise modiric.s

the appropriation oravailability offunding forihis Agreement and
the Scope for Services provided h EXHIBIT B, in whole or in part,
the State shall hove the right to withhold payment until such funds
become available, if ever, and shall have the right to reduce or
terminate (he Services under this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Coniraeiornoticcofsuch reduction or termination. The
SiaicshaU not be required to transfer funds from any other account
or source to the Account idcniincd rt block 1.6 in the event fundx

in that Account arc reduced or unavaibblc.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/ PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, mcthodofpaymcnt.andtcrmsof payment
arc identiHcd and more particularly described r EXHIBIT C which
is incorporated herein by reference.
5.2 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in no
event shall the total of all payments authorixcd. or actually ma'ic
hcrcundcr, exceed the Price Limitation set forth it block 1.8. The
payment by the State of the contract price shall be the only and (he
complete reimbursement to ihC'Contractor for all expenses, of
whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the performunce

hereof, and shall be ihconly a ndihccompleie compensation to the
Contractor for the Services.

SJ The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement those
liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. KSA 80:7
through KSA 80;7-c or any other provision ofiaw.
5.J The Stale's liability under this Agreement shall be limited to
monetary damages not to exceed the tola I fees paid. The Contractor
agrees that it has an adequate remedy at law for any breach of this
Agreement by the Slate and hereby waives any right to specific
performance or other equitable remedies against the State.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS AND

REGULATIONS/EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performance of (he Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all applicable statutes, laws,
regubtions. and orders of fcdcrak state, county or municipal
authorities which impose any obligation or duly upon the
Coniractor,.mcluding. but not limited to. civil rights and equal
employment opportunity bws and the Governor's order on Respect
and Civility in the Workplace. Executive order 2020-01. In
addition, if (his Agrocmcni is funded in any pan by monies of (he
United States, the Contractor shall comply with all federal
executive orders, rules, regubtions and statutes, and with any rules,
regulations and guidelines as the State or the United States issue to
implement these rcgubiions. The Contractor shall also comply
with all applicable intcllcciualpropcny laws.
6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Coniraetorshall rtoi
discriminate against employees or'applicants for cmploymoii
because of age, sex, scxuaroricniation. ra ce, color, maritalstatus,
physical or mental disability, religious creed, national origin,
gender identity, or gender expression, and will takeaffirmarivc
action to prevent such discrimination, unless exempt by state or
I'cdcralbw. The Contractor shall ensure any subcontractors comply
with these nondiscrimination requirements.
6J No payments or transfers of value by Contractor or its
representatives in connection with this Agreement have or shall be
made which have the purpose or effect of public or commcrcbl
bribery, or acceptance of or acquiescence in extortion, kickbacks,
or other unbwful or improper means of obtaining business.
6.4. The Contracioragiecs to pcrmh the Slate or United States
access to any of the Contractor's books, records and accounts for
(he purpose of ascertaining compliance with (his Agreement and a II
rules, regulations and orders pertaining to the covenants, terms and
conditions of this Agreement,

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shallai its own expense provide all personnel
nccessarytopcrform the Services. The Coniraclorwarrantsthalal
personnel engaged in the Services shall be qualified to perform the
Services, and shall be properly licensed and otherwise authorized
to do so under a II applicable laws.
72 The Contracting Officer spccincd in block 1.9, or any
successor, shall be the State's point of contact pertaining to this
Agreement.
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8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.
8.1 Any one or more of Ihc following acts or omissions of Ihc
Coniractor shall constitute an cvcni of default hcreundcr ("Event of

Default"):

8.1.1 failure to perform the Services saiisfaciorily or on scheduk;
8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hcreunder. and/or
8.1.) failure to perform any other covenant, term orcortdition of-
this Agreement,
8 2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State may
take any one. or more, or all, of the following actions:
82.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the liveni of
Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the absence ofa
greater or lesser spcciOcation of time, thirty (30) calcndardays
from the date of the notice; and if the livcf»i ofDcfauti is not timely

cured, terminate this Agreement, effective two (2) calcndardays
after giving the Coniractornoiicc of termination;
82.2 give the Coniraciora written notice specifying the Evcntof
Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering thaithc portion of the contract price which
would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the period from
the daicofsuch notice until such time asthc State dctcmiincs that
the Contractor has cured the Event of Default shall never be pad
to ihcConlracior;

82.) give the Coniraciora written notice specifying the Event of
Default and set offa gainst any other obligations the State may owe
to the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of any
Event of Default; and/or

8 2.4 give the Coniraciora written notice specifying the Event of
Default.treat the Agreement asbreachcd.icrminatc the Agreement
and pursue any of its remedies at hw or in equity, or both.

9. TERMINATION.

9.1 Notwithstanding paragraph 8, the State may, at its .sole
discretion, icrminatcthc Agreement for any reason, in whole or in
pan, by thirty (30) calcndardays written notice to the Contractor
that the State is exercising its option lo terminate the A^cmcnt.
92 In the event ofan early termination of this Agreement for any
reason other than the completion of the Services, the Coniraaor
shall, at the State's discretion, deliver to (he Contracting Ofnccr,
not bier than fifteen (15) calendar days after the date of
termination, a rcpon ("Termination Rcpon") describing in detail
all Services performed, and the contract price earned, to and
including the date of termination. In addition, at the State's
discretion, the Contractor shall, within nftccn (15) calendar days
of notice of early termination, develop and submit to the Siaica
transition plan for Services under the Agreement.

ID. PROPERTY OWNERSHIP/DISCLOSURE.

10.1 As used in this Agreement, the word "Property" shall mean
all data, information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of. or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, ail studies, reports. Hies,
formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses, graphic
representations, computer programs, computer printouts, notes,
letters, mcmoranda.papcrs.and documents, a II whet her finished or
unfinished."

10.2 Ail daio and any Property which has been received from the
State,or pureha.scd with funds provided forihaipurposcundcrihts
Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and shall be returned
to the State upon demand orupon tcrminaiion of this Agreement
for any reason.

10.3 Disclosure of data, information and other records shall be
governed by N.M. RS.A chapicr9l -A and/or other applicable law.
Disclosure requires prior written approval of the State.

It. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TOTHE STATE. In the
pcrformanccofthis Apcemcni the Contractor is in all rcspccisan
independent contrdcior,and is neither an agent nor an employee of
the State, Neither the Contractor nor any of it sofHccrs. employees.
B gents or members shall hove authority to bind the State or receive
any bcncfiis. workers' compensation or other emoluments
provided by the State to tu cmpbyccs.

12. aSSICNiMENT/DELECATION/SUBCONTRACTS.
12.1 Contractorshallprovide the State written notice at least fifteen
(15) calcndardays before any proposed assignment, delegation, or
other transfer of any interest in this Apccmcnt. No such
assignment, delegation, or other transfersha !i be effective without
the written consent of the State.

12.2 For purposes of paragjaph 12, a Change of Control shall
constitute assignment. "Change of Control" means (a) merger,
consolidation, or a transaction or series of retaicd transactions in
which a third party, together with its affiliates, becomes the direct
or indirect owner of fifty percent (50%) or more of the voting
shares or similar equity interests, or combined voting power of the
Contra c tor. or (b) the sale of all or substantially all of the assets of
the Contractor.

12.3 None of the Services shall be subcontracted by the Contractor
without prior written notice and consent of the State.
12.J The State is entitled to copies of all subcontracts and
assignment agreements and shall not be bound by any provisions
contained in a subcontract oron assignment agreement to which it
is not a party.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. The Contractor shall indemnify,
defend, and hold hamilcss the State, its officers, and employees
from and against all actions, cbiins. damages, demands,
judgments, fmcs, Ibbiliiics, losses, and other c.xpcnscs, including,
without limitation, reasonable attorneys' fees, arising out of or
rtbiing to this Agreement directly or indirectly arising from death,
personal injury, property damage, inicltcciual propcity
infringement, or other claims asserted against the State, its officers,
or employees caused by the acts or omissions of negligence,
reckless or willful misconduct, or fraud by the Contractor, its
employees, agents, or subcontractors.The State shall not be liable
for any costs incurred by the Contractor arising under this
paragraph 13. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the State's
sovereign immunity, which immunity is hereby reserved to the
State. This covenant h paragraph 13 shall sur\'ivc the tcrminaibn
of this Agreement.

Page 3 of 4
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14. INSURANCE.

M.I The Coniracior shall, ai its sole expense, obiain and
coniinuously mainiain r force, and shall require any subconiraetor
or assignee to obtain and mainiain in force, ihc following insurance;
14.1.1 commercial general lability insuranccagainsi all cbims of
bodily injury, deaih orpropcrty damage, in amounb of not less tha n
Sl.OOO.OOOper occunencc and S2.000.000 aggregate or excess;
and

14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering all Propeny
subject 10 subparagraph 10.2 herein, in an amount not less than
80% of the whole replacement value of the Property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall be on
policy forms and endorsements approved for use ti the State of
New Hainpshircby the N'.H. Dcpartmcntoflnsurancc.and issued
by insurers licensed in the State of New Hampshire.
M.3 The Contractor shali furnish lo the Coniracting Officer
ideniincd in block 1.9, or any successor, a ccrlificalc(s) of
insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement. At the
rcquc.siofihe Contracting OfHccr, orony sucec.«or, the Contractor
shall provide ccrtificatefs) of insurance for aD rcncwal(s) of
insurance required under this Agreement, The ccrtincatc{$) of
insurance and any renewals thereof shall be aitachcd and arc
incorporated herein by reference.

15. WORKERS' COMPENSATION.
15.1 Bysigning thisagrccincnt.ihcConlracloragrccs.ccrtifics and
wanantsihaithcContractorK ft compliance with or exempt from,
the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 28i-A ("U'orken;'
CoinpenSQlion ").

15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the requirements of
N.H. RSA chapicr28l-A, Contractor shall maintain, and require
any subconlracior or assignee to secure and mainiain. payment of
Workers' Compensation in connection with activities which ihc
person proposes to undertake pursuant to this Agreement. The
Contraciorsholl funitsh thcContractingOfficcr identified ft block
1.9, or any successor, proof of Workers' Compensation in the
manner described in N.H. RSA chapter 281-A and anyapplicabt
rcncwal(s) thereof, which shall be aitachcd and arc incoiporaicd
herein by reference. The State shall not be responsible for payntcni
ofany Workers' Compensation premiums or fornnyothcrcbimor
benefit for Contractor, or any subcontractor or employee of
Contractor, which might arise under applicable State of New
Hampshire Workers' Compensation laws in connection with the
pcrfomtancc of the Services undcrthis Agreement,

16. waiver OF BREACH. A State's failure to enforce its rights
with respect to any single or continuing breach of this Agreement
shall not act as a waivcrof the right of the State to lalcrcnforcc any
such rights or to enforce any other or any subsequent breach.

17. NOTICE. Any notice byapariyhcrcioioihcothcrpafiyshall
be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the time of
mailingby ccniricd mail.postage prepaid.in a United States Post
Office addressed to the parties at the addresses given in blocks 1.2
and 1.4.herein.

18. AMENDMENT. This Agrccrhcni moybcamendcd.waived or
discharged only by an in.strumcni 'n writing signed by the panics
hereto and only after approval of such amendment, waiver or
discharge by the Govemor and Executive Council of ihc Stale of
New Hampshire unless no such approval is required under the
circumstances punuani to State bw. rule or policy.

19. CHOICE OF LAW AND FORUM.

19,1 This Agreement shall be governed, interpreted andconsirucd
in accordance with the laws of the State of New Hampshire except
where ihc Federal supremacy clause requires otherwise, The
wording used in this .4grccmcni is the wording chosen by the
panics to express their mutual intent, and no rule of constructbn
shall be applied against or in favor of any party.-
[9.2 Any action.s arising out of this Agreement, including the
breach or alleged breach thereof, maynotbc submitted to binding
arbitration, but must, instead, be brought and maintained in the
iMcrrimack Count'y Superior Court of New Hampshire which shall
have exclusivejurisdiciion thereof.

20. CONFLICTING TERiMS. In thecvcnt of a conflict between
the terms of this P-37 fomi (as modified h EXHIBIT A) and any
other poriionof this .Agreement including any attachments thereto,
the icnnsof the POT (as modified in EXHIBIT A)shall control.

21. THIRD PARTIES. This Agreement is being entered into for
the sole bcncfiiofthcpanicshcrcio.andnothinghcrcin. cxprcssor
implied, is intended to or will confer any legal or equitable right,
benefit. Of remedy of any nature upon any other person.

22. IIEAOINCS, The hcadingsthroughout the Agreement arc for
reference puiposcsonly. and the words contained therein shall in
no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or aid in the
interpretation, construction or meaning of the provisions of this
Agreement.

23. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional or modifying
provisions set fonh in the aitachcd EXHIBIT A arc incorporated
herein by reference.

24. FURTHER ASSURANCES. The Contractor, along with its
agents and affiliates, shall, at its own cost and expense, execute any
additional documents and take such further actions as may be
rca.sonabiy required to carry out the provisions of this Agreement
and give effect to the transactions contemplated hereby.

25. SEVER.\BILITV. In the event any of the provisions of this
Agreement arc held by a court of competent jurisdictiort to be
contrary to any sia tcorfedcra Haw, the rcmainingprovisions of this
Agreement will remain in full force and'cffect.

2b. ENTIRE agreement. This Agreement, which maybe
executed in a number of counicrpons. each of which shall be
deemed an original, constitutes the entire agreement and
understanding between the panics, and supersedes aD prior
agreements and understandings with respect to the subject mailer
hereof.
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EXHIBIT A

SPECIAL PROVISIONS

Additional exhibits D-G.

Federal Certincalion 2 CFR 200.415

Required ccriiricalionsincludc: (a) To assure (hat expenditures arc proper and in accordance with
the terms and conditions of the Federal award and approved project budgets, the annual and rmal
fiscal reports or vouchers requesting payment under the agreements must include a certification,
signed by an official who is authorized to legally bind the non-Fcdcral entity, which reads as
follows;

By signing this report, I certify to the best of my knowledge and belief that the report is true,
complete, and accurate, and the cxpendiiures.disbursemenis and cash receipts arc forthepuiposcs
and objectives set forth in the terms and conditions of the Federal award. I am aw^c that any false,
fictitious, or fraudulent information, or the omission of any material fact, may subject me to
criminal, civil or administrative penalties for fraud, false statements, false claims or otherwise.
(U.S. Code Title 18, Section 1001 and Title 31, Sections 3729-3730 and 3801-3812).

Coniraci between Northeast Deaf and Hard of Hearing Services. Inc. and
The New Hamp.<hire Department of Education

Page I of 4

Contractor hiilinh

Dale



[  EXHIBIT B

SCOPE OF SERVICES

Northeast Deaf and Hard of Hearing Services, Inc. (NDHHS) will provide the following services to the
New Hampshire Department of Educalion, Bureau of Vocational Rehabilitation (VRNH). effective upon
Governor and Council approval through June 30, 2024:

Enter into a contract with the Bureau of Vocational Rehabilitation to support Vocational Rehabilitation in
identifying deaf and hard of hearing students in New Hampshire through a transition outreach team to
collaborate and engage with targeted VRNH stakeholders; school districts, educators, audiologists,
nurses, related service providers, interpreters, families and community agencies in dcnsely.populated
areas idcntifyingtraditionally undcrscrved populations of deaf and hard of hearing youth to ensure the
resources and infonnaiion relating to prc-cmploymciu services (Pre-ETS) and raise awareness of VRNH
services.

The contractor, Northeast Deaf and Hard of Hearing Services. Inc., will;

1.) The following meeting schedule for the contract will be set upon contract appnjval; A virtual kick-
off meeting will occur with the leadership team of VRNH and NDHHS that defines the work plan
for the implementation of the contract within two weeks of the contract approval. This meeting
will be setup by the VRNH Transition Team.

2.) Create a communication plan within 3 months of signed c.xccuiion of the contract. The
communication plan will identify the educational material to be used to increase the school's
muliidisciplinary team members for the student, for greater understanding of the communication
and language challenges the dcafand hard of hearing students face and education about the benefit
of VRNH's prc-cmployment transition services at a younger age and how it can optimize the
students' success in life after high school. This plan will be approved by the leadership team of
VRNH.

3.) Create outreach strategies that include, but arc not limited to, connecting with public, private,
homcschool and charier schools as well as medical providers and agencies throu^ tools such as
email, phone.trainings, and pre-employment transition services and provide four family open
houses. NDHHS will engage VRNH counselor as needed for presentations.

4.) Identify Deaf and Hard of Hearing students who are eligible or potentially eligible for VRNH
services, students not previously identified by VRNH or already connected to agency. The
number of recruits will be mutually agreed upon through discussion between NDHHS and VRNH
as the program develops.

5.) Promote annual transitiai fair hosted by VRNH as well as all future event and trainings sponsored
by VRNH in relation to prc-cmployment training services.

6.) Create a reporting sheet to track which stakeholder the NDHHS outreach transition made a
connection with outlining the action taken, messaging content, which delivery method was
utilized, frequency c.xpeclcd and number of actual service hoursof delivery service. NDHHS will
produce a monthly report with number of trainings provide, location of trainings, number of

Contract between Northeast DcaJ'and Hard of Hearing Services. Inc. and
The A/eu' Hampshire Department nf Education
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EXHIBIT B CONTINUED

attendees and school districts represented and number of referrals as a result of professional
trainings and submit to VRNH by the 10" of the following month.

7.) Submit invoices in a timely manner to VRNH on the schedule outlined in Exhibit C. along with
the monthly progress report.

8.) A monthly progress meeting will be set for the first 3. (three) months, once the implementation
plan is complete. The VRNH Director, Transition Administrator and Contract Manager will
attend monthly meetings along with identified NDHMS staff.

9.) A quarterly meeting will occur virtually with the VRNH Director, Transition Administrator,
Contract Manager, and NDHHS Director to review quarterly data and progress with the contract
deliverables. Additional necessary meetings can be scheduled if needed.

I 0.)AII marketing material used to promote the specific services listed above shall prominently display
the VRNH logo and communicate clearly that the services are being provided at the request of
.VRNH and as a result of direct funding by VRNH and the Department of Education.

Contract between Northeast Deofand Hard of Hearing Services. Inc. and
The New Hampshire Department of Education
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EXHIBIT C

METHOD OF PAYMENT

BUDGET

 Co

Price

Pcr-hour

Total

Outreach to 90 NH Schools 40 hours $150 $6,000

Prc-ETS Professional TraininRs (15hrs/month) 150 hours $150 $22,500

Family Open Houses (lx/monih3 10 hours $150 $1,500

Total $30,000

Limitation on Price: In no case shall the contract exceed the price limitation of $30,000.

Funding Source: Funds to support this request arc available in FY2024, in the account tilled VR Field
Programs-Federal as follows:

06-56-56-565010-25380000-102-500731

Contracts for Program Services
FY 2024

$30,000

MctliodofPaYmcnt: Payment is to be made by the I O'^'ofeach month after approval based on reports

and invoices submitted, which are supported bya summary ofcompletedactiviiies.ihathave taken place

in accordance with the terms of the contract, along with a detailed listing of expenses incurred. If

otherwise correct and acceptable, payment will be made for 100% of the expenditures listed. A final

invoice is due within 30 days of the end of this contract. Invoices and monthly reports shall be
electronically submitted on the 10'" day of the following month to:

Bill Gaffney
William.G.Gaffnevfr^Joe.nh.t'ov
Cc: Susan.S.Roma((t).doc.nh.rfv

Vocational Rehabilitation

NH Department of Education
21 S. Fruit Street, Suite 20

Concord. NH 03301

Contract between Northeast Deaf and Hard of Hearing Services. Inc. and
The New Hampshire Department of Education
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EXHIBIT 0

Contractor Obligations

Conlracts in excess of the simplified acquisition threshold (currently set at $250,000) musi oddress
administrative, controctuol, or legal remedies in instances where the conlroc tors violate or breach
contract terms, ond provide for such sonclions ond penolties os oppropriote. Reference;
2 C.F.R. § 200.326 ond 2 C.F.R. 200, Appendix II. required controct douses.

The contractor acknowledges thof 31 U.S.C. Chop. 38 (Admlnistrotive Remedies for Folse Claims
ond Stotements) applies to the contractor's octions perloining to this controct.

The Contractor, certifies ond offirms the truthfulness and accuracy of each stoiemeni of its
certlficotion ond disclosure, if ony. In oddition. the Coniroclor understonds and agrees thai the

provisions of 3t U.S.C. § 380t et seq.. opply to this certificotion ond disclosure, if any.

Breacti

A breoch of the controct douses obove moy be grounds for termination of the controct. and for
deborment os o controclor end subcontroctor os provided in 29 C.F.R. § 5.12.

Fraud and False Statements

The Contractor understonds that, if the project which is the subject of this Contract is finonced in
whole or in port by federal funds, that if the undersigned, the compony thot the Contractor
represents, or any employee or agent thereof, knowingly mokes ony false stotement,
representotion. report or cloim os to the character, quality, quantity, or cost of moteriol used or to
be used, or quontity or quality work performed or lo be performed, or mokes ony false stotement
or representotion of o moteriol foci in ony stotement. certificote, or report, the Controctpr and
any compony that the Controclor represents moy be subject lo prosecution under the provision
of 18USC §1001 ond§l020.

Environmental Protection

(This clause is opplicoble if this ConlracI exceeds $150,000. It oppties to Federot-oid contracts
only.)

The Controclor is required to comply with oil opplicoble slondords. orders or requirements issued
under Section 306 of the Cteon Air Act (42 U.S.C. 1857 (h). Section 500 of the Clean woter Act (33
U.S.C. 1368). Executive Order 1 1738. and Environmental Protection Agency (ERA) regulations (40
CFR Port 15) which prohibit the use under non-exempt Federot conlrocfs. grants or loons of
focilities included on the EPA List of Vlotoiing Facilities. Violations shall be reported to the FHWA
and to the U.S. EPA Assistont Administrolor for Enforcement.

Procuremer\t of Recovered Materials

In occordonce with Section 6002 of the Solid waste Disposol Act (42 U.S.C. § 6962), Stole agencies
and agencies of o political subdivision of o sfote Ihot ore using opproprioted Federal funds for
procurement must procure items designoled in guidelines of the Environmentol Protection
Agency (EPA) of 40 CFR 247 Ihot contoin Ihe highest percentage of recovered moferiots
procficobte, consistent with mointoining o sotisfocfory level of competition, where the purchose
price of the item exceeds $10,000 or the volue of the quantity ocquired in the preceding fiscal
yeor exceeded $10,000; must procure solid woste monogement services in o monner thot
maximizes energy and resource recovery: ond must hove estoblished on offirrnotive procurement
program for procurement of recovered materials identified in the EPA guidelines.

Coi'roc'or tnifioh
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Exhibit E

Federol Debormentond Suspension

□. By signature on this Controcf. tt^e Controctor certifies its complionce. end the compliance
of its Sub-Controclors. present or future, by stofing that ony person ossocioted therewith in
the copocity of owner, portner. director, officer, principol investor, project director,
monoger. auditor, or any position ot outhority involving federal funds:

1 . Is not currently under suspension, debarmenl. voluntary exclusion, or determination of
Ineiigibility by any Federol Agency:

2. Does not.hove a proposed debormenf pending;

3. Hps not been suspended, debarred, voluntarily excluded or determined ineligible by
any Federol Agency within the post ttvee (3) yeors; ond

4. Has not been Indicted, convicted, or hod a civil judgment rendered against the firm
by a court of competent jurisdiction in ony matter involving fraud orofficiol misconduct
within the post three (3} years.

b. Where the Controctor or its Sub-Conlrocior is unable to certify to the statement in Section
0.1 . above, the Controctor or its Sub-Contractor shot! be declored ineligible to enter into
Controct or porticipote in the project.

c. Where the Contractor or Sub-Contractor is unobie to certify to ony of the statements as
listed in Sections a.2., o.3.. or o.4.. above, the Controctor or its Sub-Controctor shell submit
a written expionotion to the OOE. The certificotion or explonotion shall be considered in
connection with the OOE's determinotion whether to enter info Contract.

d. The Contractor shall provide immedlote written notice to the DOE if. at ony time,
the Contractor or its Sub-Controctor. leorn that its Deborment and Suspension
certificotion has become erroneous by reoson of chonged circumstances.

CorilrociOf Wr/d
Oo/c



Exhibit F

Anti-Lobbying

The Contfoclor ogrees lo comply with the provisions of Section 319 of Public Low I0M21.
Government wide Guidonce for New Restrictions on Lobbying, end 31 U.S.C. 1352. ond further
ogrees to hove the Controctor's representotive. execute the following Certiflcotion:

The Controctor certifies, by signing ond submitting this controct. to the best of his/her knowledge
ond belief, that:

o. No federol opproprioted funds hove been poid or shall be poid. by or on beholf of the
undersigned, to ony person for influencing or olfempling to influence any officer or
employee of any State or Federol Agency, o Member of Congress, on officer or employee
of Congress, or on employee of o member of Congress in connection with the owording,
of ony Federol controct, the making of ony federol gront. ihe moking of ony federal loon,
the entering into ony cooperotive ogreement. ond the extension, continuolion. renewol
omendment, or modificolion of ony Federol contract gront, loon,' or cooperotive
ogreement.

b. If ony funds other fhon federolly opproprioled funds hove been poid or sholl be poid to
ony person lor influencing or oltempting to influence on officer or employee, of ony
Federol Agency, o Member of Congress, ond officer or employee of Congress, or on
employee of o Member of Congress in connection with this Federol controct. gront. loon,
or cooperative agreement, the undersigned sholl complete and submit Ihe "Disclosure of
Lobbying Activities" form in occordonce with its instructions
fhtto://www whitehouse QOv/Qmb/Qronls/sllllin.odll.

c. This certificotion is o moteriol representotion of fact upon which relionce wos ploced when
this tronsoction wos mode or entered into. Submission of this certificotion is o prerequisite
for moking and entering into this tronsoction imposed by Section 1352. Title 31 ond U.S.
Code. Any person who foils to file the required certificotion sholl be subject to o Civil
penolfy of not less Ihon $10,000 ond not more thon $100,000 for eoch such foilure.

d. The Controctor olso ogrees. by signing this controct fhot it sholl require ihot the longuoge
of this certificotion be included in subconfrocts with oil Sub-Controctor(s) ond lower-tier
Sub-Controctors which exceed $100,000 ond thot oil such Sub-Conlroctors ond lower-tier
Sub-Controctors sholl certify ond disclose occordingly.

e. The DOE sholl keep the firm's certificotion on file os port of its origlnol controct. The
Controctor sholl keep Individuol certificotions from oil Sub-Controctors ond lower-tier Sub-
Controctors on file. Certification shall be retoined for three (3) yeors following completion
ond occeplonce of ony given project.

Cori''0c'0' Ini'/iol
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Exhibit G

Rights to Inventions Mode Under o Contract. Copy Rights end Conndentlollty

Rights to Inventions Mode Under o Contract or Agreement
Contracts or agreements for the perlormonce of experimental, developmentol. or reseorch work
shell provide for the rights of the Federol Government and the recipient in ony resulting invention
in occordonce with 37 CfR part 401. "Rights to Inventions Mode by Nonprofit Orgonlzotions ond
Small Business Firms Under Government Gronls. Controcls and Cooperolive Agreements," ond
ony implementing regulations issued by the OOE.

Any discovery or invention Ihot crises during the course of the contract shall be reported to the
DOE. The Controctor is required to disclose inventions promptly to the contracting officer (within 2
months) offer the inventor discloses it in writing to contractor personnel responsible for potent
molfers. The owording agency shall determine how rights in the invention/discovery shall be
allocated consistent with "Government Patent Policy" and Title 37 C.F.R. § 401.

ConridentlGllty
All Written ond oral informofion ond moterials disclosed or provided by the DOE under this
agreement constitutes Confidential Informofion. regordless of whether such information wos
provided before or after the dote on this ogreement or how it was provided.

The Controctor ond representatives thereof, octrnowledge that by making use of. ocquiring or
odding to informotion obout matters and doto related to this agreement, which are confidentiol
to the DOE and Us portners. must remain the exclusive property of the DOE.

Confidential informotion meons oil doto ond informotion reloted to the business and operofion of
the DOE, including but not limited to all school and student dolo contained in NH Title xv.
Educolion. Chopters 186-200.

Confidential information includes but is not limited to. student ond school district data, revenue
ond cost information, the source code for computer softwore ond hordwore products owned in
port or in whole by the DOE. finonciol information, portner inlofmation{inciuding the identify of
DOE portners). Controctor and supplier informotion. (including the identity of DOE Conlroctors
ond suppliers), and any informotion Ihot has been morlced "confidentiol" or "propriefofy". or with
the like designotion. During the lerm of this contract the Controctor agrees lo abide by such rules
OS may be odopted from lime to time by the DOE lo maintoin the security of oil confidentiol
information. The Controctor further ogrees thot it will olways regard and preserve os confidential
informolion/dalo received during the performonce of this controct. The Controctor wJI not use.
copy, moke notes, or use excerpts of any confidential information, nor will it give, disclose, provide
access to. or otherwise moke available ony confidentiol information to ony person not employed
or controcfed by the OOE or subconlrocled with the Contractor,

Ownership of Intellectual Property
The 006 shall reioin ownership of oil source doto ond other intellectual property of the DOS
provided to the Conlroclor in order to complete the services of this ogreemenl. As well the OOE
will retain copyright ownership lor any and all materials, potenis ond intellectuol property
produced, including, but not limited to. brochures, resource directories, protocols, guidelines,
posters, or reports. The Controctor sholl not reproduce ony moleriols for purposes other thon use
lor the terms under the controct without prior written approval from the DOE.

Confrocror IniriOl
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state of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

1, David iM. Scanlan. Sccrcian* ofSiatc ofihc Staic of New Hampshire, do hereby ccnify ihai NORTHEAST DEAP AND HARD

01- I'lEARING SERVICES. INC. is a New Hanipsiiire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on

April 28. 2000. I further certify that all fees and documents required by the Sccretar>' of Stale's ofike ha^'c been received and is in

good standing as far as this olVice is concerned.

BusinessID; J44894

Certificate Number: 0005777286

Qe:
%

s
o •0

IN TESTIiVlONV WHEREOE.

I hereto .set my hand and cause to be alVi.scd

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this Ibthdavof MavA.D. 2022.

Dayid M. Scanlan

Sccretan' of State



Cornoriae Bvlaws

I, Peter Simoneau, hereby certify that I am duly elected Secretary of Northeast Deaf
and Hard of Hearing Services. I hereby certify the following is a tnie

copy of the current Bylaws or. Articles of incorporation of the Corporation and that the Bylaws
or Articles of Incorporation .authorize the following officers or positions to bind the

Corporation for contractual obligations; Executive Director.

I fWther certify that the following individuals currenliy hold the office or positions

authorized: Michelle McConaghy.

I further certify that it is understood that the State of Ncw.Hampshire will rely on this

certificate as evidence that the person listed above currently occupies the position indicated

and that they have fiill authority to bind the corporation. This authority shall remain valid

for thirty (30) days from the date of this certificate.

DATED: ATTEST:'
/  / (Name & Title)

c.lA.
J



CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
Date (mwoo/vyyy)

06/20/2023

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND. EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the poilcyfles) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or bo endorsed.

If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder In lieu of such endorsement(s).

peoouccR

E & S Insurance Services LI.C

21 Meadowbrook Lane

P 0 Box 7425

Gaiofd NH 03247-7425

Sam? Eleanor Spinanola
F..V <603) 293-2791 (603) 293-7188

a^'ess- Elcenorsplnauolaiglesinsurance.rwi
INSURERIS) AFPOAOiMO COVCRAOe NAIC*

tNSURERA AmTnAt FinarKtal Services. Inc.

WSUIUO

Northeast Deaf and Hard of Heahng Senrices. Inc.

SO OM Survcook Road. Suite 6

Concord NH 03301

tNSURERe

INSURERC

INSURER 0

INSURER E

INSURER F

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: " REVISION NUMBER:
THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERlOO
INOICATEO, NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER D0CUMEI4T WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS.
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

LTR TYP6 OF INSURANCE '
SUBR

WB POLICY NUU8ER
FOLiCVEFF

(MM/OO/YYYYI
aoLicyexF
IMMIOO/YYVYl LIMITS

A

X COMMERCIAL CElrSRAL UABILITY

E  1 X| OCCUR

07/01/2023 07/01/2024

EACH OCCURRENCE
j 1.000,000

QAkUGE rUULNIkU J 100.000

MEO EXP (AAT en» MTMA) , 5.000

PERSONAL t AOV INJURY
J 1.000.000

oerr\ aCGRECaTE LIMIT APPLIES PER:

POLICY Q]] LOC
OTHER;

GENERAL ADOREDATE
J 3.000.000

PRODUCTS • COMPiOP aCC
J 3.000.000

S

A

AU1OMOeLE LIAfilLITV

'

07/01/2023' 07/01/2024

COM8INE0 SINGLE LIMIT
(El •cddmt

S 1.000.000

AMY AUTO

HCOULEO
ITOS
n-OwnEO
fTOSONlY

OOOILY INJURY (P«r MOOn) s

X

OWNEO

AUTOS ONLY
HIRED
AUTOS ONLY X

SC
•AL
NC

BODILY 1N JURY (P«r ■ceiiMnl) s

PROPERTY DAMAGE s

s

A'

X UMaRELLA Lua

EXCESS LIAB

OCCUR

CLAIMS-MAOE
07/01/2023 07/01/2024

EACH OCCURRENCE ,  1,000.000

AGGREGATE s

neo X RETEMTION t fO-000 , s

WORKERS COJiVeNSATION
AND EMPLOYERS-Luaamr y/N
ANY PR0P«£T0R/P*FtTKEftr6X£CUTIVE
0FriC£Rfl4ELE1£R EXCLUOEO?
(tacMonr M
II anerib* gndr
OESCRIPTIOM op OPERATIONS bplow

H/A

CTH-
STATUTE FR

E.L.EACHACaOENT s

E.L. DISEASE • EA EMPLOYEE s

E.L. DISEASE • POLICY LIMIT s

oeac RIPTION OF OPERATIONSriOCATIONSI VEHICLES <AC0R0 101. AMISonM R«m«ni» Schodut*. mrrMMtKfiPd ll<nor« tpac* I* r*qu<r«4}

NHED

25 Han St

Concord NH 03301
1

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF. NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED representative

ACORD 2S(201ftf03) Th« ACORO namfl and logo er« registered merks o( ACORO



^CORO CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE DATE (MI«DOnnrYY}

4/24/2023

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
'  CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES

BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S). AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT; If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, Iho policy(lea) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or bo endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
thi« rArtlfloaio dees not confer rlahts to the certificate holder In lieu of such endorsementts).

PRODUCER '
Davis & Towie Morrlll & Everett, Inc.
115 Airport Road
Concord, NH 03301

cfNTACT SherrI A. Cole, ACSR

uKo.EMi: (603) 715-9764 | f>ag.No,;(603) 225-7935
scoie@davistowlc.com

INSURER/SI AFFORDING COVERAGE NAlCd

INSURER A: Travelers Insurance 19046

INSURED

Northeast Deaf and Hard of Hearing Services, Inc.
56 Old Suneook Road Suite 6
Concord. NH 03301

wsurerb:BCS Insurance Comoanv

INSURER C ;

INSURER! ;

INSURER F : '

COVERAGES CgRTJPICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE PaiCY PERIOD
INDICATED NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS.
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR
jJL

GEt-q AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLl^ PER:
POLICY LOG

TYPE OF IKSLIRAMCE

COWUERCIAL OeHERAL UABlLflY

^ CUMMSJAAOE 1^ OCCUR

OTHER:

AUT0U08ILE LUen.lTY

ANY AUTO

OWNED
AUTOS ONLY

""-ONLY

UMBRELLA LUB

EXCESS LIAB

DCD

SCHEOLR.EO
AUTOS

OCCUR

Clams-uaoe

RETENTIONS

WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS' LUfilLITY

ANY PROPRIETCR/PARTHERiCXECUnvE

IT Y«». dMOlM undtf
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS ItMav

riH

E

Cybar Liability

AOOL
lUSfi.

SUBR

JOOffi.

N/A

POLICY NUMBER
POLICY EFF POLICY eXP

IIMM/PPFYVYYII iMMmoomm 1

A/14/2023

11/16/2022

DAMAGE TO RENTED
_EtoMJS£SiEl.O£ClJtl«ltti-

4/14/2024

11/16/2023

EACH OCCURRENCE

MED EXP (Any ona p»»otil

PERSONAL > AOV INJURY

GENERAL AGGREGATE

PRQOUCTS • COMPlOP AGO

COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT

BODILY INJURY (P» ixoonl

BOOILY INJURY (P«r vcciMni]

PTOPERTY DAMAGE
itedotntr

EACH OCCURRENCE

AGGREGATE

mALUK.

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT

E.L. DISEASE • EA EMPLOYEE

EL. OlSEASe. POLICY LIMfT

2.500 ded/retentlon

SOO.OOO

500,000

500,000

2,000,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS I LOCATIONS/ VEHICLES (ACCRO 101. AddllJ«iil R»m*fk» Seh^duM. mty iltdclidd »mot* «piC* l» f*«ulf*d)
Worfcar* Compensation 3A Stataa: NH

•***Exca»s Cyber Liability*"

Scottsdale Insurance Company • Policy 0 EKS34S4911
Policy Period .11/16/2022 - 11/16/2023
(3,000.000 Aggregate Limit of Liability • (2.500 deductible/retention

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

NHED

25 Hall Street

Concord, NH 03301

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF. NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

ACORD 25 (2016/03)

AUTHORIZED RCPRESENTATfVE

£>1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORO name and logo are registered marks of ACORD



•J u NDHHS
Northeast Deai and Hard

O  of Hearing Services. INC.

56 Old Suacook Road Suite 6, Concord, NH 03301

603-224-1850 Voice, 603-968-5889 VP
603:856-0242 Fax, 603-224-0691 TTY

www.ndhhs.org

Mission Statement

Northeast Deaf and Hard of Hearing Services (NDHHS) is dedicated to serving
Deaf and Hard of Hearing individuals in an environment that is
communicatively unrestricted and "natural" to them. NDHHS is committed to
hiring staff members who are fluent in sign language and capable of identifying
and meeting consumers' preferred mode of communication. NDHHS seeks to
empower, educate and advocate for equal access and opportunity for Deaf and
Hard of hearing citizens of New Hampshire. We are committed to the provision
of services in a culturally sensitive environment, which promotes
independence and productivity.
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McLARNEY
& CDMPAN^r^ii'LlC

Certified Public Accountants
www.niclarneyco.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

1 o.lhc Uonrd of Direclci-s

of NorihMSt Deaf and Hard of Hearing Services

Ojiinion

Wc have audited the accompanying financial statements of Northeast Deaf and Hard of Hearing Services (a nonprofit
orgnnizntion), which comprise the statement of financial position as of June 30.2022 and 2021, and (he related statements
of flclivltics, functional expenses, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

In our opinion, the financial statements inferred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
Northeast Deaf and Hard of Hearing Services as of June 30,2022 and 2021, and the changes in net assets and its cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

Wc conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Avdiling Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of
the United States Our responsibilities under those standards are fuiiher described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of Northeast Deaf and Hard of
Hearing Services and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating
to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinions.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design, implementation, and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from
material misslatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or events, considered
in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about Northeast Deaf and Hard of Hearing Services' ability to continue as a
going concern within one year after the date that the financial statements are available to be issued.

Auditor's Respoosibilitles for tbc Audit of tbe Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and tp issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing Standards will alsvays detect a material
misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is highcr than fpr one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in (he
aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.

6 Courthouse Lane. OneTremontSt.
Chelnisford,fwtA01824 . - Concord. NH 03301
Phone; (978) 453-2222 Phone:(603)224-4990
Fax:(978)453-2882 McLarney & Company, LLC fa*:(603)226-0030

Helping our clients keep more of what they earn.



In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Governmeni Auditing Standards, we:

•  Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

•  Identify and assess tlie risks of material misstatemcnt of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, and
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis,
evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.

•  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness. ofNorthcast
Deaf and Hard of Hearing Services' internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

•  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates
made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements.

•  Conclude whether, in ourjudgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial
doubt about Northeast Deaf and Hard of Hearing Services' ability to continue as a going concern for a i-easonable
period of time.

We arc required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control related matters that we identified during the
audit.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, wc have also issued our report dated October 13, 2022, on our
consideration of Northeast Deaf and Hard of Hearing Services internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of
its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose
of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and
the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness ofNorthcast Deaf and Hard of Hearing Services'
internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance
with Government Auditing Standards iri considering Northeast Deaf and Hard of Hearing Services s internal control over
financial reporting and compliance.

McLamey & Coivypar\y LLC

McLarncy & Company, LLC
Cbclmsford, MA
October IJ, 2022



Norilicflsl Drnrontl Kurd ufHcoHngScnlcrs
Sintcnienis of FlnniKiul Postlioii

For (Ik. Ytnii Eixlcd June. 30, 2022 luid 2021

ASSETS

June 30, 2032 June 30, 2021

Wlilinut Doiior With Donor 2022 Without Donor With Donor 2020

Cnrrenl Assels Resti'ictions . Rcsii'iclions Total KrstHctioits Restrictions Total

Cnsl\(Nole 2. 5) S 329.500 S s 329,500 S 404.279 ' S S 404,279

AccotiiKs Recetvnble (No(e 2) 166,601 166,601 94.597 • 94,597

Orniiia Receivable • Current (Mo(c 3, 5) 72.681 72.681 28,206 28,206

Prepaid Expenses 7.995 7.995 3.439 - 3.439

ToiaI Current Assets 576.777 576,777 530.521 •• 530,521

Fixed Asscii J)

rurnidirc titd Fixtures 7.756 - 7.756 7.756 ■ 7,756

OlVice EqiiipoKnl, Compulcis 54.626 - 34.626 54.626 - 54.626

SuHwarc 21J28 . 21.228 21,228 . 21,228

I.eKSchold IiitprovenKiiLt 3.455 - 3,455 3,455 •  - 3,455

AccumuiAted Oeprocintion (69.547) . (69.547) (63.908) (63.908)

Total Fixed Assets, Net 17.519 - 17.519 23,158 • 23,158

Ollter Assels

Deposits 3.000 . 3,000 3.000 3,000

Total Other Assels 3,000 • * 3,000 3,000 ■ 3,000

TOTAL ASSETS S 597.296 $ s 597.296 s 556.678 .% r i 556,678 .

.

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Current LinbiliticJ

Accounts Payable s 21,109 s s •  21,109 s 6,139 s i  6.139

Current Portion PPP Loon (Nole 8) • - - 21 758 21,258

Deferred Revenue 47,000 47,000 46JOO 46,500

Accrued Expenses 27.997 27.997 11.296 11,296

Total Current Liabilities 96.106 96.106 85.193 85,193

Long Tcnn Debt (Note 8) I.39J54 I39J54

Total Liabilities 96.106 96.106 224.547 224.547

Net Assets

Ncl Assets (Note 2, S) 501.187 501.187 332.131 332,131

TOTAL UABIUTIES AND NET ASSETS s 597.296 s . s 597,296 s 556.678 $ S 556.678

See Acccnipiin^iiig Ho4cs and Auditor's Report
P8gc3



iNorthciul Dear aitd Hani of Hcarins Services '
Sftlctiirills uf Aclit'ilirs

For (Kr Vcar* CndcJ June 30.2022 nni) 2021

Rcxtniie and Stifwort fNoie 2. 9»

Foundation Grants

GovemntenI GniKs

Contributions

Program Revanv
Referral Fees

PPP exliiigiashment of Debt
Inieicsl Income

TOTAL REVENUE AND SUPPORT

Fimctional Exoensca

Pfoamm Services'

SnnnoTlina Seiviccs

Genenil A Administrative

Fund Raising

TOTAL FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

CtUVNCE IN NET ASSETS (Nolc 9)

Hot Assets • DegJnnini of Year

NETASSrrrS- RiNDOF YEAR

June 30,2022 June 30,2021

Witltuul Donur

Restrictions

With Dutior

Restrictions

2022

Tofnl

Without Durwr With Donor

Restricilons Hrstrictions

20ZJ

Total

S

280.379

25.292

C20.454

72.327

IG0.6I2

84

S S

280,379

25,292

620,454

72.327

160,012
84

$  • S •

170,235

14,364 i

417.914

56.360

215

S

170.235
14,364

417.914

56.360

215

1.159,148 ■ 1,159.148 659.088 659.088

831.09? 831.097 395.678 595.678

158.995 • 158,995 IIZ635 112,635

990.092 990,092 708Jl.t 708.313

169.056 • 169.056 (49Z25) (49,225)

33Z131 332.131 381.356 381.356

S  501.187 s S  501.187 S  331131 S .S 332;I3I

See Accompenyiog Notes and Auditor's Report
Pete 4



Northeast Deaf and Hard of Hearing Services
Statements of Cash Flows

June 30, 2021 and 2020

2022 2021

Cash Flows From Opei ating Activities
Change in Net Assets

Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net
casli provided (used) by operating activities
NON Cash Charges (Credits) to Change in Net Assets

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH

CASH AT BEGINNING OF YEAR

CASH AT END OF YEAR

Supplemental Cash Flow Disclosures

Interest Paid

Income Taxes Paud

Non Cash PPP Interest Accrual

$  169,056 $ (49,225)

Depreciation & Amortization 5,945 ^  5,945

Gain on extinguishment of debt (160,612) --

Allowance for bad debts 43,627 13,851

Changes in Working Capital

(hicrease) decrease in accoiints receivable (1 15,935) (33,003)

(Increase) decrease in grants receivable (44.475) (8,672)

(Increase) decrease in prepaid expenses (4,555). 1,266

Increase (decrease) in accounts payable 14,969 15,890

Increase (decrease) in other accrued liabilities 16,70! 13.779

Increase (decrease) in deferred revenue 500 500

Total adjustments (243,835) (49,783)

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities I  (74,779) $ (99,008)

Cash Flows From Financing Activities

Increase In PPP Loan - 75,580

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Financing Activities - 75,580

Cash Plows From Investing Activities

Purchase of fixed assets - (6.159)

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Investing Activities - (6.159)

$  (74,779) $ (29,587)

S  404,279 S 433,866

$  329,500 $ 404,279

$

$

$  1.178

See Accompanying Notes and Auditor's Report
Page 5



Nortbeast Deaf and Hard of Ueahng Scn'ices
Statements of Punctionnl Expenses

For the Year Ended June 30, 2022 &2021

Pregnni CoKral & Fund
Sen'ieu Administreli^'e Raiiinn

2022

Total

Expenses

Program

Services

Ceneril A Fund

Admiriistraiive Raitinc

2021

Tou!

Expenses
Advertiting & Media ̂ (reach S  I.S39 S  1.401 S S  3340 Advertising ft Media Outrntdi i S  899 ■ S 899

Contnbutions - • • Contribtilioiis 500 SOO
Pnjgnim Ejcpeiises 10,637 • 10.637 Program Expenses 24,264 2.103 26367

Interpretcfs Fees - > - Interpreters Fees 39.412 2.700 42,11!
Printing A Publicalioni • - - Priming ft Publications - 55 55

■fravot 29.703 342 30.043 Trawd 10.474 2-36 10.710
Personnel E-vpenses 427.729 62,383 490,112 Personnel Expensa 30.1,074 52,161 355335
l^yroll Taxes 32,114 4J67 36,481 Pay^l Taxes 23,458 4,038 27,496
Fund Raising Expenses • - Fund Raising Expenses .

Consulting 203.397 7389 210,786 Consulting 95372 643 96.015
Dues, Subscripliont. Licenses •

.
- Oies, Subscriptions. Licenses . 412 412

Repeirs A Mainlaiancc ♦ ■- - Repairs ft Miiiiienanco . .

Insurance 34,384 II36S 65,953 Insurance 37,828 7374 45,101
Ftniil A Website . F.raaii & Website 2.552 521 3,07.1
Rerenat Fees Expense • Referral Fees E.xpeiue . 150 150
Starri3evdepment. Training 930 100 1,030 Staff De^xioptrtent. Traming 130 .  . 130
Supplies 3.368 2.727 8.093 Su|)pltes 2.403 684 3.087
Teleplione. Pagers 9.508 • 9.508 Tdeplrcuie. Pagers 8.925 .129 9353
Allowance for Bad Debts - 43.627 43.627 Allowance for Bad Debts 13.851 13.851
Misedlsnecus 1,776 888 2,664 Misoclloneuus 3.268 5.915 9.183
interest/Fin snce Cliarges - • Interest/Finance Charges 1.178 1,178
Accounting A Legal Services 8J72 13,408 21,780 Accctinlingft l.egal Services 301 n.946 12,247
Rent A Utilities 42.604 .5,119 47.722 Rent A Utilities 41.446 2300 43.746
Onice Expense 2,495 236 2,731 OtTice Expense 2.771 >96 2,968
Dcprccislion and Ainonir.atian - 5M0 5.640 Depreciation and AmorUrjitirat - 3.944 5.945
TOTAL EXPENSES S  831.097 %  158995 S S 990.091 TOTAL EXPENSES S 595678 S  112,635 S . S 708.313

SceAccomponytng Notes and AudilOf't Report



NORTHEAST DEAF AND HARD OF HEARING SERVICES, INC.
Notes to tlie Fiiinncinl Statements

For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2022 and 2021

NOTE 1 - NATURE OF THE ORGANlZATlCiN

Northeast Deaf and Hard ofHearing Services, Inc. (the "Organization") is a non-profit
organization dedicated to serving deaf and hard of hearing individuals in a culturally sensitive
environmeni that is communicalionally unrestricted and "natural", and which promotes
independence and productivity. It is the mission of the organization to empower, educate and
advocate for equal access and opportunity for deaf and hard of hearing citizens of New
Hampshire.

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Net Assets

Net assets, revenues, gains, and losses are classified based on the e.xistence or absence of donor
or grantor- imposed restrictions. Accordingly, net assets and changes therein are classified and
reported as follows:

Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions - Net assets available for use in general operations and
not subject to donor (or certain grantor) restrictions. The governing board has designated, from
net assets without donor restrictions, net assets for an operating reserve and board-designated
endowment.

Net Assets With Donor Restrictions - Net assets subject to donor- (or certain grantor-) imposed
restrictions. Some donor-imposed restrictions are temporary in nature, such as those that will be
met by the passage of time or other events specified by the donor. Other donor-imposed
restrictions are perpetual in nature, where the donor stipulates those resources be maintained in
perpetuity. Donor-imposed restrictions are released when a restriction expires, that is, when the
stipulated time has elapsed, when the stipulated purpose for which the resource was restricted
has been fulfilled, or both.

Revenue '& Revenue Recognition
Revenue is recognized when earned. Program service fees and payments under cost reimbursable
contracts received in advance are deferred to the applicable period in which the related services
are performed or expenditures are incurred, respectively. Contributions are recognized when
cash, securities or other assets, an unconditional promise to give, or notification of a beneficial
interest Is received. Conditional promises to give arc riot recognized until the conditions on
which they depend have been substantially met.

Contributions received are recorded as net assets without donor restrictions or net assets with

donor restrictions, depending on the existence and/or nature of any donor-imposed restrictions.
Contributions that are restricted by the donor are reported as an ihcrease in net assets without
donor restrictions if the restriction expires in the reporting period in which the contribution is
recognized. All other donor restricted contributions are reported as an increase in net assets with
donor restrictions, depending on the nature of restriction. When a restriction expires (that is,
when a stipulated time restriction ends or purpose restriction is accomplished), net assets with donor
restrictions are reclassificd to net assets without donor restrictions and reported in die sUitcmeius of
activities as net assets released from restrictions. Contributed property' and equipment are recorded m fair
value at the date of donation. Contributions with donor-imposed stipulations regarding how long the
contributed assets must be used arc recorded as net as.<«ts witli donor restrictions; othcrNvisc, the
contributions are recorded as net assets without donor restrictions.



NORTHEAST DEAF AND HARD OF HEARING SERVICES, INC.

Noles to the Finnncinl Stntcments

For the Fiscnl Years Ended June 30, 2022 and 2021

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOXJNTJNG POLICIES CoiKitiued

Donated Services and In-Kind Contributions:

Volunteers contribute significant amounts of time to our progi'am services, administration, and
fundraisLng and development activities; however, the financial statements do not reflect the
value of these contiibuted services because they do not meet recognihon criteria prescribed by
generally accepted accounting principles. Conhibuted goods are recorded at fair value at the
date of donation. The Organization records donated professional services at the respective fair
values of die services received

Cash and Cash Eouivalents

The organization considers all cash and highly liquid fmancial instruments with original
maturities of three months or less, which are neither held for nor restricted by donors for long-
term purposes, to be cash and cash equivalents.

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable are slated at the amount management expects to collect from balance
outstanding at year-end. Based on management's assessment of the credit history witli the
agencies having outstanding balances and current relationships with them, it has concluded
that realization losses on balances outstanding at year-end will be approximately $ 55,373 and
$13,851 for the years ended June 30,2022 and 2021 respectively.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformily with generally accepted accounting
principles requires us to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues
and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates, and
those differences could be material.

The impact of the pandemic may result in a reasonably possibility thai estimates will change by a
material amount in the near term, however, we are unable to assess these changes, if any, at this
point in time.

Advertising Costs

Advertising costs are expensed as incurred. Advertising costs approximated $3,240 and $0
during the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively.

Property and Eouioment
Property and equipment are recorded at cost, or, if donated, at the fair value at the date of
donation. Northeast Deaf and Hard of Hearing Services, Inc. follows the policy of capitalizing
expenditures for property and equipment in excess of $500. Major renewals and improvements
are capitalized; while replacements, maintenance and repairs, which do not materially extend the
useful lives of the assets, are expensed. Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method
over the following estimated useful lives;

Office Equipment and Furniture 5-7 years
Development of Software 5 years
Leasehold improvements 5 years



NORTHEAST DEAF AND HARD OF HEARING SERVICES, INC.
Notes to the Fiiinncini StntemeiUs

For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2022 and 2021

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES Continued

Depreciaiion amounts expensed and reflected in the siaiemenls of activities for tlie fiscal years
ended June 30, 2022 and 2021 was $ 5,944 and $5,944, respectively, We review the carrying
values of property and equipment for impairment whenever events or circumstances indicate that
the carrying value of an asset may not be recoverable from the estimated future cash flows
expected to result from its use and eventual disposition. When considered impaired, an
impainnent loss is recognized to the extent carrying value exceeds the fair value of the asset.
There were no indicators of asset impairment during the year ended June 30, 2022.

Income Taxes

The organization is organized as a nonprofit corporation and has been recognized by the IRS as
exempt from federal income taxes under IKC Section 501(c)(3). Thus it qualifies for the
charitable contribution deduction under LRC Sections l70(b)(l)(A)(vi). The organization is
annually required to file a Return "of Organization Exempt from Income Tax (Form 990) with the
IRS. In addition, the entities are subject to income tax on net income that is derived from
business activities "that are unrelated to their exempt purposes. Management has determined that
the organization is not subject to unrelated business income tax and has not filed an Exempt
Organization Business Income Tax Return (Form 990-T) with the IRS.

Functional Expense Allocation

The costs of program and supporting services activities have been summarized on a functional
basis in the statement of activities. The statement of functional expenses presents the natural
classification detail of expenses by function. Accordingly, certain costs have been allocated
among the programs and supporting services benefited.

Shipping & Handling

All amounts billed to a customer in a sales transaction related to shipping and handling reprcseni
revenues earned are reported as revenue/ Costs incurred by the Organization for shipping and
handling, including costs paid to third parties are reported as an expense.

Reclassifications

Certain reclassifications of amounts previously reported have been made to the accompanying
financial statements to maintain consistency between periods presented. The reclassifications had
no impact on previously reported net assets.

Pav Check Protection fPPPl Loan

A nongovernmental entity may account for a Paycheck Protection (PPP) loan as a financial
liability in acccirdancc with FASB ASC Topic 470, Debt. Under this model, the entity records the
cash inflow from the PPP loan as debt and accrues interest at the below market rate. The amount

remains a liability until cither the loan is partly or wholly forgiven and the debtor has been
released or the debtor pays off the loan. If some or all of the loan is forgiven the liability would

, be reduced and a gain on extinguishment is recognized.



NORTHEAST DEAF AND HARD OF HEARING SERVICES, WC.
Notes to the Finnncinl Stnterncnts

For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2022 and 202,1

NOTE 3 - GRANTS RECEIVABLE

-Grants receivables represent grants for which the donor organization has unconditionally
committed to providing funding in tlie future. Grants receivables are recognized as income on
the statement of activities at the time the commitment is made by the donor organization. Grant
commitments which will not be received within the next twelve months are reflected as other
assets on the statement of financial position, The method of accounting for gr^ts receivable has
the effect of creating fluctuations between positive and negative changes in net assets from year
to year as reflected on the statement of activities. Grants for which the donor organization places
contingencies are recognized as support when the funds are actually received or when the
contingency has been satisfied. All grants are expected to be received; tlicrefore, no allowance
for doubtful accounts has been established.

NOTE 4 - ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE:

The balance of Accounts receivable on June 30, 2022 and 2021 are comprised of the following.
2022 2021

Accounts Receivable

Less: Allowance for Doubtful

Accounts

Net Accounts Receivable

$221,974 $108,448

(55.373) (13,851)

166,601 94.597

NOTE S- CONCENTRATFON OF CREDIT RISK

The Organization maintains an operating account at one bank. Operating accounts at an
institution are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDTC) up to $250,000. The
Organization exceeded the federally insured limits throughout the fiscal year. Cash at this
institution exceeded Federally insured limits at June 30, 2022 and 2021 by $78,895 and
$154,279, respectively.

The Organization receives all its revenue from New Hampshire sources. 58% of the Accounts
receivable balance is concentrated in the five largest customers.

Certain types of concentrations may be more relevant to the financial statement due to the
impacts of the pandemic. For example, these may include concentrations in labor, financial
assets, sources of supply, or customers that have been or will be impacted by the pandemic. We
are unable to assess these potential impacts at this time.

NOTE 6- COMMITMENTS

The Organization entered into a lease for ofTice space in Concord, New Hampshire in 2017 for
five years until March 2022 for $3,000 per month until April 2020 when the rent will be $3,150
per month. This lease was renewed in April of 2022 for an additional five-year period ending on
March 31, 2027. The monthly rent under this lease renewal is as follows: $3,150 for the first two
years then $3,350 per month for the next three-year period. Rent expense for the facility for the
years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021 were $37,800 and $36,450 respectively.
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NORTHEAST DEAF AND HARD OF HEARING SERVICES, INC.

Notes to the Finniicinl Stntemcnts

For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2022 and 2021

NOTE 6- CdMIvgTIVlENTS CONTINUED

The Organization also has the following operating leases for office equipment; a copier lease
having monthly payments of $136.50 which began on June I, 2017 and matures on May
31,2022. Upon maturity the Organization entered into a fwe-year lease beginning on May 5,

2022 and ending on April 5, 2027 for $167. Per month, a telephone system lease having monthly
payments of $205 beginning on April 18, 2017 and etiding on March 16, 2022 and finally a
stamp machine lease with monthly payments of $45 beginning on May 15, 2020 and ending in
August of 2026.

Future minimum lease payments required for the year ended:
6/30/2023 $40,344

6/30/2024 40,944

6/30/2025 42,744

6/30/2026 42,294
6/30/2027 31,987

Thereafter 0

NOTE 7- FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

The financial statements report certain categories of expenses that are attributed to more than one
program or supporting function. Therefore, expenses require allocation on a reasonable basis that
is consistently applied. The expenses that are allocated include occupancy, depreciation, and
amortization, which arc allocated on a square footage basis, as well as salaries and wages,
benefits, payroll taxes, professional services, office expenses, information technology, interest,
insurance, and other, which are allocated on the basis of estimates of time and effon.

N0TE8-PPPDEBT

On April 22, 2020, the Organization received loan proceeds in the amount of approximately
$85,032 and on April 1, 2021 received $74,402 for a total of $159,434 under the Pay-check
Protection Program ("PPP"). The PPP, established as part of the Coronavirus Aid, Relief and
Economic Security Act ("CARES Act"), provides for loans to qualifying businesses for amounts
up to 2.5 limes of the average monthly payroll expenses of the qualifying business. The loans
and accrued interest are forgivable after eight weeks as long as the borrower uses the loan
proceeds for eligible purposes, including payroll, benefits, rent and utilities, and maintains its
payroll levels. The amount of loan forgiveness will be reduced if the borrower terminates
employees or reduces salaries during the twenty-four-week period.

The unforgivcn portion of the PPP loan is payable over two years and five years respectively at
an interest rate of 1%, with a deferral of payments for the first six months, which was accrued for
the first loan in the amount of $1,178. The Organization intends to use the proceeds for purposes
consistent with the PPP, The Organization currently believes that its use of the loan proceeds will
meet the conditions for forgiveness of the loan, During the year ended June 30, 2022 the
Organization received forgiveness of both loans from the SBA.

II



NORTHEAST DEAF AND HARD OF HEARING SERVICES, INC.
Notes (0 the Fiiiflncinl Stntenients

For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30,2022 and 2021

NOTE 8 - PPP DEBT Continued

2022 2021

Less Current Ponion of Loans

Long Term Notes Payable

$ $ 160,612

-21258

$ $ 139,354

Principle Maturities of Long Term D^l were as follows on June 30, 2022

6/30/2022

6/30/2023

.  6/30/2034

6/30/2025

6/30/2025

Tliereafler

NOTE 9- LIOUIDITY AND AVAELABnLITV

Financial assets available for general expenditure, that is, without donor or other restrictions
limiting their use, within one year of the balance sheet date, comprise the following:

2022 2021

Cash $329,500 $404,279

Accounts Receivable
166,601 94,597

Grants Receivable
72,681 28,206

Financial Assets available to meet cash need for

general expenditure within one year
$568,782 $527,081
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NORTHEAST DEAF AND HARD OF HEARING SERVICES, INC.
Notes to the Finnncinl Statements

For the Fiscnl Ycnrs Ended June 30, 2022 and 2021

NOTE 9- UOUIDITV AND AVArLABlLITY CONTINUED

Northeast Deaf and Hard of Hearing Services, Inc. is substantially supported by restricted
contractual or grant payments which are all expected to expire within a twelve- month period
Because a contact's or grant's restriction s requires resources to be used in a particular manner or in a.
future period Northeast Deaf and Hard of Hearing Services, Inc. must maintain sufficient resources
to meet those responsibilities. As part of Northeast Deaf and Hard of Hearing Services, Inc.
liquidity management, it has a policy to structure its financial assets to be available as its general
expenditures, liabilities, and other obligations come due. As part of our liquidity management plan,
we invest cash in excess of daily requirements in short-term investments, CDs, and money market
funds.

NOTE 10- SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Organization has evaluated subsequent events through October 13, 2022, which is the date
the financial statements were available to be issued for events requiring recording or disclosure
in the financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2022 and none were found.



McLARNEY
Certified Public Accountants

www.mclarneyco.cpm

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE

AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
COl'EIWMENTAUDimC STANDARDS

To U)C Board of Trustees of

Northeast Deaf and Hard of Hearing Services

We have audited, in accordance wiih ilte auditing standards generally .accepted in Uie Urtited States of America and ilte standards
applicable to financial audits coniaiiKd in Govtmment Aud'nin^ Standards issued by the Coinpiroller General of (lie Uniied Slates, Utc
financial staletncnts of NorOieast Deaf and Hard of Henring Services (a nonprofit org.miaaiion), which comprise llie siatcmeni of
financial position as of June 30, 2022 and tlie related statciiiems of aciivilies, and cash flows for the year Uicn ended, and the related
notes to iIk financial statements, and have issued our report tliereon dated October 13, 2022.

Rcpoil on Internal Control over Financial Rcponing

In plaruijng and pcrfonning our audit of lite financial statements, ux cortsidcred Nontieast Deaf and Hajd of Hearing Services' internal
control over financini reponing (internal control) .as a basis for designing aiidit procedures Uiat are appropriate in the circumstances for
lite purpose of c.xpressingouropinion on tltc financial slatemenis, but not for iltc purpose of expressing an opinion on ihccITcctK'cness
of Nonlteasi Deaf and Hard of Hearing Services internal control. Accordingly, ux do not express an opinion on ilie effectiveness of
Norilicast Deaf and Hard of Hearing Services' iniemaJ control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when iltc design or operation of a control docs not allow iitanagcincnt or ctiiployces, in the nonnal
course of pcrfonning tlicir assigned functiorts, to prevent, or detect and correct, missiatemenis, on a timely basis. A material weakness
is a deficienc)'. or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such iJiai tlicrc is a reasonable possibility tliai a material misslatcment
of tlie entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or delected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in Imern^ control tliai is less severe titan a material weakness, yet important enough to
merit altcnlion by those cliarged with governance.

Our consideration of iniemal control was for llie litniicd purpose described in the first paragraph of tliis section and was not designed to
identify alt deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during
our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control lliat we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material
weaknesses or sigrtificant deficiencies may exist tital were not ideitiified.

Report CO Corojilinncc nnd Other Matters

As pan of obtaining reasonable assurance about wheilier Northeast Deaf and Hard of Hearing Services financial siatctnems art free from
matcri.ll misslatcment, we perfontted tests of its compliance witli certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and gram agreements,
noncompliance wilit wltich could lave a direct and material elTcct on U»e financial siaieiucnts. However, providing an opinion on
compliance witli titosc provisions was not an (^jeclive of our audit, and accordingly, we do rwi express such an opinion Tltc results of
our tests disclosed rto instances of noncompliance orotlicr mailers iluii are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Pur|iosc of This Report

Tltc purpose of tltis report is solely to describe tltc scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and die results of liiai testing,
and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the organization's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part
of an audit pcrfoniicd in accordance wiiJi Government Auditing Standards in considering die organrzaiion's internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this comtnunicaUon is not suitable for any oUicr purpose.

McLamcy & Cktmpany LLC
Chelmsford, MA 01824
October 13, 2022
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Board of Directors List

V

The governing board of Northeast Deaf and Hard of Hearing consists of Community Members, of
which at least fifty-one percent must be Deaf or Hard of Hearing. The primary duties of the board are
to supervise the Executive Director, develop policies for the agency, oversee the agency's finances
and to raise funds. Between meetings, members are expected to be on committees and to" actively
raise funds. The average commitmenl for our board members is about four hours per month.

Chairman of the Board Michael Rrtter

Executive Committee

mike(8>sdarchHects. com

Term Ends: October 2024

Vice Chairman Norman Lafond Sr.

Executive Committee

bianormsti^comcast. net
Term Ends: October 2024

Treasurer Larry Farrell
Executive Committee

lefcDaQ(3>com cast.net

Teim Ends: January 2024

Secretary Peter Simoneau

Executive Committee

Detersimoneau(S>com cast.net

Term Ends: January 2024

Board Member Vincent Youmatz

Executive Committee / Legal Council
woumatzOvoumalzlaw.com

Term Ends; October 2024

Board Member Lori McLaren

lorimclarenr3)amail.com

Term Ends: January 2024

Board. fWlember Deborah Bailey
4bailev(S>comcast.nel

Term Ends: January 2024

Board Member Tina Cook

Tinasian2tS)aol.com

Term Ends: October 2022

Board Member Gerry Monroe
monroenhfa>aol.com

Term Ends: July 2022

Board member Rickey Persons
roersonsfSaol.com

Term Ends: January 2025

Board member Susan Wolf-Downes

fiwdownes1®Qmail.com

Term Ends: October 2024

Board member Open
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Hannah Neild

An accomplished aspiring, people-oriented, professional, and resourceful teacher of the deaf with e.xperience
seeking to secure a challenging position to utilize and e.xpand my learnings, knowledge and skills, while making a
significant contribution that increases student performance.

EDUCATION

CuUaudet University. Washington. D.C.
Bachelor of Arts in Early Childhood Education (2019)
Master ofArts Deof Education (2021)

NCAj4 Leadership Seminar (2021)

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

Northeast Deaf and Hard of Hearing Services, Concord, NH August 2021 - Pre.sent
Teacher ofthe Deaf and Hard ofHearing
" Build trusting relationships with students, parents and co-teachers
- Assess. Plan and Implement lesson plans aligned with students' present levels of skills and identified
areas of need

- Implement Individualized Education Plans and collaborate with staff on data collection and lEP
progress reports

- Manage student caseload ranging from early intervention to high school ages across various
districts throughout the state of NH

- Coordinate pre-cmployment transition services for deaf and hard of hearing studcni.s

Canterbury Woods Elcmencory School, Annandalc, VA Febaiary 2021 - June 2021
Teacher ofthe Deafand Hard ofHearing
- Build trusting relationships with students, parents and co-teachers
- Assess. Plan and Implement lesson plans aligned \vith students' present levels of skills
- Implement Individualized Education Plans and collaborate with stall on data collection and lEP

progress repons.

- Worked with individual students and small groups on various topics based on need

Canterbury Woods Elementary School, Annandalc, VA September 2020 - February 2021
Education Program Student Teacher
- Build trusting relationships with students, parents and co-teachers
~ Assess. Plan and Implement lesson plans aligned with students' present levels of skills
- Worked with individual students and small groups on various topics based on need

SKILLS

Bilingual (English and American Sign Language)
Strong Verbal Communications Skills
Leadership
Time Management
Creative

Microsoft: Word, PowerPoint and Excel



Michelle McConaghy

Experience

Summary:

Experienced Professional with over twenty years assisting individuals with disabilities achieve
independence through identifying measurable steps that provide a solid foundation for successful
outcomes. Well versed in major legislation including the American with Disabilities Act (ADA), Americans
with Disabilities Act Amendments Act (ADAA). Rehabilitation Act. and the Workforce Innovation and

• Opportunity Act (WlOA). A passionate advocate and evangelist for the disability community that leads by
example via a resolute optimism towards life and individual potential.

Skills:

Case Management
Team Leadership
Public Speaking
Written & Verbal Communication

Accommodation Specialist
Transition Consulting
Active Listening
Assistive Technology
Service Orientation

Community Outreach
Critical Thinking
Deaf Culture

Team Building
American Sign Language
ADA and Section of 503/504 of Rehabilitation Act

MSOffice Suite

Mac Office Suite

Data Analysis

Experience:

Executive Director

Northeast Deaf and Hard of Hearing Services
October 2020- Present

Concord. NH. 03301

www.ndhhs.org
•  Develop and direct organizational strategy and services, in conjunction with the board of directors
•  Attend various informational/outreach meetings for purposes of disseminating information about

NDHHS.

•  Engage ongoing communication with various service providers, agencies, businesses,
organizations, civic groups.and other interested parties.

•  Prepare comprehensive budgets.
•  Reporting on revenue and expenditures
•  Oversee and direct general fundraising activities and grant application and funding Write grants

and seek other funding sources.
•  Recruit and supervise NDHHS staff and contractors
•  Overseeing day-to-day business activities.
•  Assess the need and scope of services to be provided.

Vocational Rehabilitation Counselor Lead

Washington State Division of Vocational Rehatxlitation
April 1999 - September 2020
Seattle. Washington, United States
httDs://www-.dshs.wa.Qov/dvr

•  Provide vocational counseling to assist custon^ers in gaining an understanding of their disabilities,
potential impediments to employment, and related issues that must t>e considered in selecting an
employment goal Including carrying out a successful Individualized Plan for Employment



(IPE). Manage an average caseload of one hundred and ten customers living wiU^ a variety of
disabilities in order to achieve successful employment outcomes.

Determine client eligibility for a federally funded vocational program by evaluating and analyzing
necessary medical, psychological, social, educational, vocational,,and financial information to
use for vocational planning.
Conduct intakes and determine customer's needs to provide or arrange vocational rehabilitation
services that include guidance and counseling, assessment, transition from high school to
employment required to achieve and maintain employment goals.
Oversee the delivery of Pre-£mployment Transition Services for students with disabilities in order
to ensure ED plan adherence. Develop relationships with students, school districts, family
members, arxl government agencies In order to ensure successful career placement. •
Manage expenditures within an allotment of case service funds in excess of $150,000, for the
.diagnostic evaluation of the customer or required for the implementation of vocational
rehabilitation services identified on the IPE.

Utilize electronic case management system to conduct all facets of documentation, including
current record of vocational rehabilitation services, noting functional limitations, key decisions and
activities while an active case.

.Conduct community outreach initiatives through presentations and collaboration with partners and
multiple stakeholders.

Assigns and coaches staff within the office regarding best practices in the delivery of vocational
rehabilitation counseling practices, service delivery policies and procedures, case management,
and funding approval in the absence of office supervisor.
Assists in the development of agendas and office meetings along with external presentations to
partners and community stakeholders.
Participate in a committee to coordinate and plan the annual Deaf2Deaf BizTown event:
httDs.//vimeoorQ.com/seaQomedia/ia-biztown •

Director

Pathfinder Transition Network (PTN)
February 1997 -August 1998
Kintersville,.Pennsylvania. United Slates

•  Co-founded and managed social service agency Incorporating technology-based training for the
Deaf and Hard of Hearing individuals. Worked directly with Deaf and Hard of Hearing clients in
obtaining and maintaining employment.

• Worked in concert with clients to identify assistive technology and services that helped to remove
barriers to work, in addition educated employers in providing accommodations and accessibility
awareness.

•  Managed internal budget of $150.000 dollars and secured individual funding for customer needs
via external Slate, Local, and Federal channels..

•  Facilitated communication and job skills acquisition with consumers to ensure long term
employment success.

Program Specialist
Lehigh Valley,Community Foundations Inc.
February 1996 - November 1996
Bethlehem, Pennsylvania. United States
httDs://www.lehiQhvallevfoundation.orQ

•  Coordinated, facilitated and assisted with medical, behavior programs, appointments, and.
activities for individuals with disabilities.

•  Consistently and accurately maintained client records in compliance with local, state, federal,
agency and contractual regulations or requirements

•  Assisted with the supervision and management of both client's individual and house financial
accounts.



•  Supervised and oversaw the staffing support In the homes, working to promote staff cohesion and
build staff morale.

•  Provided personnel supervision to assigned staff.

•  Maintained and sustained positive working relationships with participants' families and friends,
vocational program staff, day program staff, DOA Case/Resource Management and other service
providers.

Employment Specialist
Employment Technology Inc.
February 1990 -April 1994
Doylestown, Pennsylvania, United Stales
httD://emotech.orQ

• Worked directly with an average of fifty individuals with disabilities in obtaining and maintaining
employment.

•  Interfaced with employers and educated them on the positive impact individuals experiencir>g
disabilities and barriers can have on the workplace.

•  Developed thorough knowledge of local, regional, and national labor trends, career openings and
search strategies, along with additional resources in order to assist clients in a successful career
search.

•  Maintained up-to-date case notes detailing the goals of clients and work-related activities.
•  Provided job training and supervision to clients at job sites including; performing task analysis,

breaking down tasks and teaching new ways to perform them.
•  Performed time studies, documented piece rate activity and monitored quality control.
•  . Worked alongside the disabled customers until they learned to function at an acceptable

performance rate.
•  Monitored client's behavioral objectives and provided behavioral interventions when necessary.

Education:

Bachelor of Social Work: Temple University
Master of Rehabilitation Counseling: University of Kentucky



NORTHEAST DEAF AND HARD OF HEARING SERVICES

Key Personnel

Name Job Title Salary (docs

not include

benefits)

Amount Paid from

this Contract

Hannah Nield Teacher of the Deaf 53,662.50 3206.50

Pamela Lovejov Procram Coordinator f PT) 40.450.00 176.25

Gaylc Baird (will
rcDlacc next month)

Accountant 57,685.16 165.00

Michelle McConaghy Executive Director 83.298.24 423.50


